Prescribed format of agency financial statements
	
	Consistent with the requirements of Treasurer’s Direction Section R2.1 this Appendix provides agencies with the prescribed format for agency financial statements for the
2022-23 financial year.

	
	Although the prescribed format has been developed to cover a wide range of agency circumstances, in some situations agencies may need to include additional financial information and disclosures or both. Treasurer’s Direction Section R2.1 and this Appendix provide flexibility in certain circumstances. In this regard, agencies should refer to italicised comments in the prescribed format.





	
	




Financial statement overview
For the year ended 30 June 2023
	
	<Insert a narrative description here. For example, this may include summarised comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, and cash flow statement information, together with a narrative of key items impacting the net result, reasons for significant movements in asset or liability accounts, etc. As well as a narrative, agencies may wish to supplement this with charts and tables, together with any applicable performance against budget.>

	
	<Narrative should be consistent with agency financial statements and associated note disclosures.>





Certification of the financial statements
	
	We certify that the attached financial statements for the <agency name> have been prepared based on proper accounts and records in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and with the requirements as prescribed in the 
Financial Management Act 1995 and Treasurer’s Directions.

	
	We further state that the information set out in the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement, and notes to and forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2023 and the financial position on that date.

	
	At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.






			
<NAME>	<NAME>
<TITLE – Accountable Officer>	<TITLE – Chief Finance Officer (or equivalent)>
<DATE>	<DATE>


Comprehensive operating statement
For the year ended 30 June 2023
	AASB101.10(b)(ea)
AASB101.51(c)(d)(e)
AASB101.113
	
	Note
	2023
	2022

	
	 
	 
	$000
	$000

	
	INCOME
	
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Taxation revenue
	
	
	

	AASB 1058.26(a)
	Grants and subsidies revenue
	4
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Current
	
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Capital
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	

	AASB 1058.38-41
	Appropriation
	5
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Output 
	
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Commonwealth (excluding capital appropriation)
	
	
	

	AASB 15.113(a)
	Sales of goods and services (b)
	6
	
	

	AASB 101.82(a)
	Interest revenue
	
	
	

	
	Goods and services received free of charge
	7
	
	

	AASB 101.85
	Gain on disposal of assets (a)
	8
	
	

	AASB101.82(a), 85
	Other income (b)
	9
	
	

	AASB101.82(a),85
	TOTAL INCOME  
	3
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.81A
	EXPENSES
	
	
	

	AASB 101.99, 102 
	Employee expenses
	
	
	

	AASB 101.99,102
	Administrative expenses
	
	
	

	
	Property management
	
	
	

	
	Purchases of goods and services
	10
	
	

	
	Repairs and maintenance
	
	
	

	AASB 101.99,102, 
AASB 138.118
	Depreciation and amortisation
	20,21, 22,23, 24
	
	

	AASB 101.99, 102
	Other administrative expenses1
	
	
	

	AASB 101.99, 102
	Grants and subsidies expenses
	
	
	

	
	Current
	11a
	
	

	
	Capital
	11b
	
	

	
	   Community service obligations
	11c
	
	

	AASB 101.82(b)
	Interest expenses
	12
	
	

	
	TOTAL EXPENSES
	3
	 
	 

	AASB 101.85
	NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.81A
	OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(c)
	
	
	

	
	Items that will not be reclassified to net surplus/deficit

	TD A1.1
	Changes in accounting policies(d)
	
	
	

	TD A1.1
	Correction of prior period errors(d)
	
	
	

	AASB 116. Aus39.1, Aus40.1
	Changes in asset revaluation surplus
	
	
	

	AASB 101.81A
	TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.81A
	COMPREHENSIVE RESULT
	
	 
	 



	
	1 Includes DCDD service charges and DIPL repairs and maintenance service charges.

	
	The comprehensive operating statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.


	
	<Additional note disclosures for material income or expenses may be included as required. Line items (excluding summary headings) with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed.>

	
	<(a) Where a net loss on asset disposal occurs, this line item would be included under 'Expenses' as 'Loss on disposal of assets'. >

	
	<(b) Additional note disclosures that provide a breakdown of key components of a line item would be necessary where the reader may be uncertain as to what is included in that line item and the line item is a material income or expense.>

	
	<(c) Refer to AASB 101 for more information on other comprehensive income.>

	
	<(d) Only for adjustments made in accordance with Treasurer’s Direction Section A1.1 requirements relating to accounting policy changes and correction of prior period errors.>




Balance sheet
As at 30 June 2023
	AASB101.10(a)(ea)(f)
AASB101.51(c)(d)(e)
AASB101.113
	
	Note
	2023
	2022

	
	 
	 
	$000
	$000

	
	ASSETS
	
	
	

	AASB 101.60, 66
	Current assets
	
	
	

	AASB 101.54 (i)
	Cash and deposits
	14
	
	

	AASB 101.54 (h)
	Receivables
	16
	
	

	AASB 101.54 (g)
	Inventories
	17
	
	

	AASB 101.54 (d)
	Advances and investments
	18
	
	

	AASB 101.54(j), AASB 5.38
	Assets held for sale
	25, 33
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Other financial assets(a)
	19
	
	

	
	Total current assets
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-current assets
	
	
	

	AASB 101.54(h)
	Receivables
	16
	
	

	AASB 101.54 (d)
	Advances and investments
	18
	
	

	AASB 101.54(a)
	Property, plant and equipment
	20, 33
	
	

	AASB 101.54(c) 
	Intangibles
	23, 33
	
	

	AASB 101.54(f)
	Biological assets
	 
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Heritage and cultural assets
	24, 33
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Other financial assets(a)
	19
	
	

	
	Total non-current assets
	
	 
	 

	
	TOTAL ASSETS
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	LIABILITIES
	
	
	

	AASB 101.60, 69
	Current liabilities
	
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Deposits held
	26
	
	

	AASB 101.54(k)
	Payables 
	27
	
	

	AASB 101.54(m)
	Borrowings and advances
	28
	
	

	AASB 101.54(l)
	Provisions
	29
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Other liabilities
	30
	
	

	
	Total current liabilities
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.60, 69
	Non-current liabilities
	
	
	

	AASB101.54 (m)
	Borrowings and advances
	28
	
	

	AASB 101.54(l)
	Provisions
	29
	
	

	AASB 101.55
	Other liabilities
	30
	
	

	AASB 101.60, 69 
	Total non-current liabilities
	
	 
	 

	
	TOTAL LIABILITIES
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	NET ASSETS
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.54(r), 78(e)
	EQUITY
	
	
	

	AASB 101.54(r)
	Capital
	
	
	

	
	<Reserves>(b)
	32
	
	

	
	Accumulated funds
	
	
	

	
	TOTAL EQUITY
	
	 
	 



	
	The balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

	
	<Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Additional note disclosures and or line items for material assets or liabilities may be included as required. For example, additional line items may be required for items such as: 'Assets held for sale'; 'Investment property'; and 'Construction (work in progress)', where these items represent material agency asset classes.>

	
	<(a) Additional note disclosures that provide a breakdown of key components of a line item would be necessary where the reader may be uncertain as to what is included in that line item, and the line item is material.>

	
	<(b) Examples of reserve accounts are 'Asset revaluation surplus' and accounts including changes in value of financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and changes in value of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge. Each reserve account should be disclosed as a separate line item. Movements within each reserve account following revaluation should be detailed in Note 32.>


<AGENCY NAME>

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023
	
	
	Note
	 Equity at 
1 July
	Comprehensive result
	Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
	Equity at 
30 June 

	AASB 101.10(c), 
AASB101.51(c)(d)(e)
AASB 101.106 (d)
AASB 101.113
	
	
	AASB 101.106(d)
	AASB 101.106(d)(ii)
	AASB 101.106(d)(iii)
	AASB 101.106(d)

	
	 
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(d)
	Accumulated funds
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(b), 110
	Changes in accounting policy(a) 
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(b), 110
	Correction of prior period errors(a)
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106A
	Transfers from reserves
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements directly to equity(b)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106A
	<Reserves>(c)
	32
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital – transactions with owners
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(d)(iii)
	
	
	
	   
	
	

	
	Equity injections
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital appropriation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity transfers in 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other equity injections
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Specific purpose payments
	
	
	
	
	

	
	National partnership payments
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth – capital appropriation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity withdrawals
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital withdrawal(d)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity transfers out 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total equity at end of financial year
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(d)
	Accumulated funds
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(b), 110
	Changes in accounting policy(a) 
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(b), 110
	Correction of prior period errors(a)
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106A
	Transfers from reserves
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements directly to equity(b)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106A
	<Reserves>(c)
	32
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.106(d)(iii)
	Capital – transactions with owners
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity injections
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital appropriation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity transfers in 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other equity injections
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Specific purpose payments
	
	
	
	
	

	
	National partnership payments
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth – capital appropriation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity withdrawals
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital withdrawal(d)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity transfers out 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total equity at end of financial year
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

	
	

	
	<(a) Only for adjustments made in accordance with Treasurer’s Direction Section A1.1 requirements relating to accounting policy changes and correction of prior period errors.>

	
	<(b) Where material, individual line item disclosures should be provided for each type of income and expense that is required to be recognised directly to equity. Before inclusion these items should be confirmed with the Department of Treasury and Finance. >

	
	<(c) Examples of reserve accounts are 'Asset revaluation surplus' and accounts including changes in value of financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and changes in value of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge. Each reserve account should be disclosed as a separate line item. Movements within each reserve account following revaluation should be detailed in Note 32.>

	
	<(d) Use for cash distributions to Government.>



Cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2023

	AASB 101.10(d)(ea),
AASB101.51(c)(d)(e)
AASB 101.113
AASB 107.18(a)
	
	Note
	2023
	2022

	
	 
	 
	$000
	$000

	AASB 107.10
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	

	
	Operating receipts
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(b)
	Taxes received
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(b)
	Grants and subsidies received
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	

	
	Appropriation received 
	
	
	

	
	Output
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth (excluding capital appropriation)
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(a)
	Receipts from sales of goods and services
	
	
	

	AASB 107.31
	Interest received
	
	
	

	
	Total operating receipts
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Operating payments
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(d)
	Payments to employees
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(c) 

	Payments for goods and services
	
	
	

	AASB 107.14(c)
	Grants and subsidies paid
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	

	AASB 107.31
	Interest paid
	
	
	

	
	Total operating payments
	
	 
	 

	
	Net cash from/(used in) operating activities
	15
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 107.10,21
	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	

	
	Investing receipts
	
	
	

	AASB 107.16(b)
	Proceeds from sales of non-financial assets
	8
	
	

	AASB 107.16(f)
	Repayment of advances received
	
	
	

	AASB 107.16(d)
	Proceeds from sales of investments
	
	
	

	
	Total investing receipts
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investing payments
	
	
	

	AASB 107.16(a)
	Purchases of non-financial assets
	
	
	

	AASB 107.16(e) 
	Advances and investing payments
	
	
	

	
	Total investing payments
	
	 
	 

	
	Net cash from/(used in) investing activities
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 107.10, 21
	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	

	
	Financing receipts
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(c) 
	Proceeds from borrowings 
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(c)
	Deposits received
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(a)
	Equity injections
	
	
	

	
	Capital appropriation
	5
	
	

	
	Commonwealth capital appropriation
	5
	
	

	
	Other equity injections
	
	
	

	
	Total financing receipts
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financing payments
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(d)
	Repayment of borrowings 
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(e)
	Lease liabilities payments
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities payments
	
	
	

	AASB 107.17(b)
	Equity withdrawals
	
	
	

	
	Total financing payments
	
	 
	 

	
	Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
	15
	 
	 

	
	Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
	
	
	

	
	Cash at beginning of financial year
	
	
	

	AASB 107.45
	CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
	14
	 
	 

	
	The cash flow statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

	
	<Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed.>




Index of notes to the financial statements
	
	Note
	

	
	1.
	Objectives and funding

	
	2.
	Statement of significant accounting policies	

	
	3.
	Comprehensive operating statement by output group

	
	
	Income

	
	4.
	Grants and subsidies revenue 

	
	5. 
	Appropriation



	
	5a.
	Summary of changes to appropriation

	
	6.
	Sales of goods and services 

	
	7.
	Goods and services received free of charge 

	
	8.
	Gain on disposal of assets

	
	9. 
	Other income 

	
	
	Expenses

	
	10.
	Purchases of goods and services 


	
	11a.
	Grant expense – Current grants and subsidies 

	
	11b.
	Grant expense – Capital grant 

	
	11c. 
	Grant expense – Community service obligations 

	
	12.
	Interest expenses 

	
	13.
	Write-offs, postponements, waivers, gifts and ex gratia payments 

	
	
	Assets

	
	14.
	Cash and deposits

	
	15.
	Cash flow reconciliation 

	
	16.
	Receivables 

	
	17.
	Inventories

	
	18.
	Advances and investments 

	
	19.
	Other financial assets 

	
	20.
	Property, plant and equipment 

	
	21.
	Agency as lessee 

	
	22.
	Service concession assets 

	
	23.
	Intangibles

	
	24.
	Heritage and cultural assets

	
	25. 
	Assets held for sale

	
	
	Liabilities

	
	26.
	Deposits held

	
	27.
	Payables

	
	28.
	Borrowings and advances 

	
	29.
	Provisions

	
	30.
	Other liabilities

	
	31.
	Commitments

	
	
	Equity

	
	32.
	Reserves

	
	
	Other disclosures

	
	33.
	Fair value measurement

	
	34.
	Financial instruments

	
	35.
	Related parties

	
	36.
	Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

	
	37.
	Events subsequent to balance date

	
	38.
	Schedule of administered Territory items

	
	39.
	Budgetary information

	
	40.
	Budgetary information: Administered Territory items

	
	
<This index and the following notes to the financial statements are guide only. Agencies may add notes if deemed appropriate and remove notes (or disclosure) if not applicable. Where notes have been removed or additional notes have been included, agencies must ensure that note numbering and note references are correctly adjusted.>




[bookmark: _Ref73435723]Objectives and funding	
	
	<Provide a brief description of the nature of the agency’s operations and its principal activities. References to relevant sections of the agency’s annual report may also be provided. A comment in relation to the nature of the agency’s funding is also required. For example, commentary for the Department of Health could include the following:> 

	AASB 101.138(b)
	The Department of Health’s mission is to improve the health status and wellbeing of all people in the Northern Territory.

	
	Additional information in relation to the <agency name> and its principal activities may be found in section <X> of the annual report.

	AASB 1052.15
	The department is predominantly funded and therefore dependent, on the receipt of parliamentary appropriations. The financial statements encompass all funds through which the agency controls resources to carry on its functions and deliver outputs. For reporting purposes, outputs delivered by the agency are summarised into several output groups. Note 3 provides summarised financial information in the form of a comprehensive operating statement by the output group. 

	
	<A listing of agency output groups may also be provided or a reference to where this information can be found elsewhere in the annual report.>

	
	a) Machinery of government changes <remove disclosure if not applicable>

	
	<A machinery of government change refers to the reallocation of certain functions and responsibilities, arising from revisions to Administrative Arrangement Order (AAO) by government or at the discretion of the relevant ministers, chief executives or by Cabinet decision. Agencies must include all machinery of government changes that took place during the financial year in this note, including those arising from AAO’s or function transfers agreed to by relevant ministers, chief executives or Cabinet>.
Transfers in 

	
	Details of transfer: 	<XXX> unit transferred from the Department of <XX>

	
	Basis of transfer:	Administrative Arrangements Order <XX> month 20XX

	
	Date of transfer:		Effective from <XX> month 20XX


The assets and liabilities transferred as a result of this change were as follows:
	Assets
	$000

	Cash
	

	Receivables
	

	Property, plant and equipment
	

	
	

	Liabilities
	

	Payables
	

	Provisions
	

	Other liabilities
	

	
	

	Net assets
	




Transfers out
Details of transfer: 	<XXX> unit transferred to the Department of <XX>
Basis of transfer:	Administrative Arrangements Order <XX> month 20XX
Date of transfer:	Effective from <XX> month 20XX
The assets and liabilities transferred as a result of this change were as follows:
	Assets
	$000

	Cash
	XX

	Receivables
	XX

	Property, plant and equipment
	XX

	
	XX

	Liabilities
	

	Payables
	XX

	Provisions
	XX

	Other liabilities
	XX

	
	XX

	Net assets
	XX


[bookmark: _Ref73543039]Statement of significant accounting policies
	AASB 101.10(e),
113, 117
	

	
	a) Statement of compliance

	AASB 101.10(e), 138
AASB 1054.8(b)
AASB 110.17, 
TD R2.1.1
	The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 1995 and related Treasurer’s Directions. The Financial Management Act 1995 requires the <agency name> to prepare financial statements for the year ended 30 June based on the form determined by the Treasurer. The form of agency financial statements should include:

	
	1)  a certification of the financial statements

	
	2)  a comprehensive operating statement

	
	3)  a balance sheet

	
	4)  a statement of changes in equity

	
	5)  a cash flow statement and

	
	6)  applicable explanatory notes to the financial statements. 

	
	b) Basis of accounting

	AASB 101.27, 112(a)

	The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which recognises the effect of financial transactions and events when they occur, rather than when cash is paid out or received. As part of the preparation of the financial statements, all intra‑agency transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

	AASB 101.112(a), 117(a)
	Except where stated, the financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

	AASB 1054.7-9
	The form of the agency financial statements is also consistent with the requirements of Australian accounting standards. The effects of all relevant new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are effective for the current annual reporting period have been evaluated. 

	
	Standards and interpretations effective from 2022-23 financial year

	
	Several amending standards and AASB interpretations have been issued that apply to the current reporting periods, but are considered to have no or minimal impact on public sector reporting.

	
	Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

	
	No Australian accounting standards have been adopted early for 2022-23 financial year. 

	AASB 108.30
	<option 1>
Several amending standards and AASB interpretations have been issued that apply to future reporting periods but are considered to have limited impact on public sector reporting.
<option 2 - Applicable only to agencies with non-financial assets covered under AASB 13> 
On the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following standard was issued but not yet effective. This accounting standard has not been adopted early for 2022-23.
AASB 2022-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial assets of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities
This standard amends the application of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement to non-financial assets of not-for-profit public sector entities not held primarily to generate cash inflows. It applies prospectively to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted.
This revised standard provides clarification and further guidance on the current requirements for measuring non-financial assets including:
· when an asset’s use is considered ‘financially feasible’ 
· application of the cost approach in measurement of an asset’s fair value
· costs to be included in the calculation of replacement cost 
· indicators of economic obsolescence. 
<option 1>
This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements when first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2025.
<option 2>
 Based on the agency’s assessment, it is expected that the first-time adoption of these amendments for the year ending 30 June 2025 will have a material impact on the financial statements, in particular: 
<insert material impact of the amendments on financial statements>
Several other amending standards and AASB interpretations have been issued that apply to future reporting periods but are considered to have limited impact on public sector reporting.


[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]
	
	c) Reporting entity

	AASB 101.138(a)
	The financial statements cover the Department as an individual reporting entity. 
The <agency name> is a Northern Territory department established under the Interpretation Act 1978 and Administrative Arrangements Order. 

	AASB 101.138(a)
	The principal place of business of the department is: <agency principal address>.

	
	<if the agency has control over an entity external to the government, the entity’s financial statements must be consolidated with the agencies’ financial statements consistent with the Treasurer’s Direction – Equity investments and the relevant Australian accounting standards>

	
	<if an agency has no controlled entities, delete the statements below>

	AASB 101.51
AASB 10.19 

	The consolidated financial statements include all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the ‘economic entity’ comprising the agency and the entities it controls where these entities are material (refer to Note 2d)). All transactions and balances internal to the economic entity have been eliminated in full.

	
	The parent entity financial statements (titled “Agency”) include all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the agency only.

	
	d) [bookmark: _Ref132642240]Controlled entities <delete if not applicable>

	AASB 10.B86
	The consolidated financial statements of the economic entity comprise the transactions and balances of the agency and the controlled entities listed below.

	
	<Note: Where the amount of the investment and transactions of one or more controlled entities are not consolidated within agency’s financial statements for any reason, including on the basis of being immaterial, the agency must include a statement to the effect that the controlled entities financial statements are not consolidated with the agency’s financial statements.>

	AASB 124.13
	The following entity/entities is/are controlled by the agency:


Details of directly controlled entities <delete if not applicable>
	AASB 12.10
	Name of 
controlled entity
	Purpose and principal activities of entity
	% Interest in entity & basis for control (for example, majority voting rights etc.)
	Total assets
	Total liabilities
	Total revenue
	Operating result

	
	
	
	
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	
2022

	
	Company A
	
	X%
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Disclosures about non wholly-owned controlled entities <delete if not applicable>
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interest as follows:
	AASB 12.10
	Name of 
entity
	Proportion of ownership interest held by non-controlling interest
	Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling interest
	Accumulated non-controlling interest

	
	Company A
	X%
	XX
	XX


Summary financial information for Company A as follows:
	AASB 12.B10(b)
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Total income
	
	

	
	Total expenses
	
	

	
	Operating result
	
	

	
	Other comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Total comprehensive income
	
	

	
	

	
	Total current assets
	
	

	
	Total non-current assets
	
	

	
	Total assets
	
	

	
	Total current liabilities
	
	

	
	Total non-current liabilities
	
	

	
	Total liabilities
	
	

	
	Net assets
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Net increase (decrease) in cash over the reporting period
	
	



	
	e) Agency and Territory items

	TD F2.2
	The financial statements of <agency name> include income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity over which the <agency name> has control (agency items) and is able to utilise to further its own objectives. Certain items, while managed by the agency, are administered and recorded by the Territory rather than the agency (Territory items). Territory items are recognised and recorded in the Central Holding Authority as discussed below.

	
	Central Holding Authority

	TD F2.2
AASB  1050.7 1050.24
	The Central Holding Authority is the ‘parent body’ that represents the government’s ownership interest in government-controlled entities. 

	
	The Central Holding Authority also records all Territory items, such as income, expenses, assets and liabilities controlled by the government and managed by agencies on behalf of the government. The main Territory item is Territory income, which includes taxation and royalty revenue, Commonwealth general purpose funding (such as GST revenue), fines, and statutory fees and charges. 

	
	The Central Holding Authority also holds certain Territory assets not assigned to agencies as well as certain Territory liabilities that are not practical or effective to assign to individual agencies such as unfunded superannuation and long service leave.

	
	The Central Holding Authority recognises and records all Territory items, and as such, these items are not included in the agency’s financial statements. However, as the agency is accountable for certain Territory items managed on behalf of government, these items have been separately disclosed in Note 38 – Schedule of administered Territory items.

	
	f) Comparatives

	AASB  101.38
	Where necessary, comparative information for the 2021-22 financial year has been reclassified to provide consistency with current year disclosures.

	
	g) Presentation and rounding of amounts

	AASB 101.51(d)(e)
	Amounts in the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, with amounts of $500 or less being rounded down to zero. Figures in the financial statements and notes may not equate due to rounding. 

	
	h) Changes in accounting policies

	AASB 108.14
	There have been no changes to accounting policies adopted in 2022-23 financial year as a result of management decisions. <amend where required> 

	
	i) Accounting judgments and estimates

	AASB 108.32
	The preparation of the financial report requires the making of judgments and estimates that affect the recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	AASB 108.34,36,37
	The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	
	Judgments and estimates that have significant effects on the financial statements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

	
	j) Goods and services tax

	AASB Interpretation 1031.6-11
	Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

	
	Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

	
	Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable or payable unless otherwise specified.  Gross GST recoverable on commitments is disclosed separately in the commitments note.

	
	k) Contributions by and distributions to government

	TD A4.2
	The agency may receive contributions from government where the government is acting as owner of the agency. Conversely, the agency may make distributions to government. In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1995 and Treasurer’s Directions, certain types of contributions and distributions, including those relating to administrative restructures, have been designated as contributions by, and distributions to, government. These designated contributions and distributions are treated by the agency as adjustments to equity.

	
	The statement of changes in equity provides additional information in relation to contributions by, and distributions to, government.

	
	

	
	





[bookmark: _Ref72763557]Comprehensive operating statement by output group
	
	
	
	<Output group>
	<Output group>
	Total

	AASB 1052.15
	
	Note
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	 
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 1052.15(d)
	INCOME 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Taxation revenue
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies revenue
	4
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Appropriation
	5
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Output
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Commonwealth
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Sales of goods and services (b)
	6
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Interest revenue 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Goods and services received free of charge
	7
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Gain on disposal of assets (a)
	8
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Other income (b)
	9
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	TOTAL INCOME 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	AASB 1052.15(c)
	EXPENSES 
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Employee expenses
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Administrative expenses
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Property management
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Purchases of goods and services
	10
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Repairs and maintenance
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Depreciation and amortisation
	20,21, 22,23, 24
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Other administrative expenses1
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies expenses
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Current
	11a
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Capital
	11b
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	   Community service obligations
	11c
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Interest expenses
	12
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	TOTAL EXPENSES
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(c)
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Items that will not be reclassified to net surplus/deficit
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Changes in accounting policies  (d)
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Correction of prior period errors (d)
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	Changes in asset revaluation surplus
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	

	
	TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	COMPREHENSIVE RESULT
	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 


	
	1 Includes DCDD service charges and DIPL repairs and maintenance service charges.

	
	This comprehensive operating statement by output group is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

	
	<Output groups should be presented consistent with those in 2023-24 Agency Budget Statements (BP3).>

	
	<Where an agency has only one output group, but has several programs/sub-groups within that output group, the agency is to disclose here the comprehensive operating statement by program/sub-group.>

	
	<Additional note disclosures for material income or expenses may be included as required. Line items (excluding summary headings) with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Line item disclosures should be consistent with those shown in the agency comprehensive operating statement and should give a realistic view of output group income, expenses and net result.>

	
	<Where machinery of government changes affect outputs and actuals, a statement should be made: i.e.
“As a consequence of AAO changes on <X Month Year>, financial statements of the Agency reflect the actual period of responsibility for the outputs, being the period 1 July <20XX> to 30 June <20XX> for the transferring output <XX>. Comparative amounts for the prior years have not been adjusted”> 

	
	<(a) Where a net loss on asset disposal occurs, this line item would be included under 'Expenses' as 'Loss on disposal of assets'.>

	
	<(b) Additional note disclosures that provide a breakdown of key components of a line item would be necessary where the reader may be uncertain as to what is included in that line item, and the line item is a material income or expense.>

	
	<(c) Refer to AASB 101 for more information on other comprehensive income.>

	
	<(d) Only for adjustments made in accordance with Treasurer’s Directions section A1.1 requirements relating to accounting policy changes and corrections of prior period errors.>

	
	The Department of XXXX is predominantly funded by parliamentary appropriations for the provision of outputs.  Outputs are the services provided or goods produced by an agency for users external to the agency. They support the delivery of the agency’s objectives and or statutory responsibilities. The above table disaggregates revenue and expenses that enable delivery of services by output group which form part of the balances of the agency.
Income 

	
	Income encompasses both revenue and gains.

	
	Income is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, exclusive of the amount of GST. Exchanges of goods or services of the same nature and value without any cash consideration being exchanged are not recognised as income.

	
	<Agencies will need to amend income disclosures to suit agency-specific circumstances.>




<Agency name>
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[bookmark: _Ref136246674]Grants and subsidies revenue
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 1058.26, AASB15.113(a)
	
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total

	
	Current grants
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital grants
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total grants and subsidies revenue
	
	
	
	
	
	



	 
	Grants revenue is recognised at fair value exclusive of the amount of GST. 

	AASB 15.9
TD Income 21
	Where a grant agreement is enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations for the agency to transfer goods or services to the grantor or a third party beneficiary, the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15. In this case, revenue is initially deferred as a contract liability when received in advance and recognised as or when the performance obligations are satisfied. The agency has adopted a low value contract threshold of $50 000 excluding GST and recognises revenue from contracts with a low value, upfront on receipt of income <delete if not applicable>. 

	AASB 15.119, 123(a),124
	<Agency to describe the nature of goods or services it has promised to transfer in agreement, when it typically satisfies its performance obligations and significant payment terms relevant to its agreements. For example, the agency’s contracts with customers is for the delivery of health services to the community. Funding is generally received upfront for 12 months and agency typically satisfies obligations and recognises revenue as services are being delivered as specified in the agreement.>

	AASB 15.60-65
	A financing component for consideration is only recognised if it is significant to the contract and the period between the transfer of goods and services and receipt of consideration is more than one year. For the 2022-23 and 2021-22 reporting periods, there were no adjustments for the effects of a significant financing component <amend wording accordingly>. 

	AASB 1058.10,16
	Where grant agreements do not meet criteria above, it is accounted for under          AASB 1058 and income is recognised on receipt of funding except for capital grants revenue received for the purchase or construction of non-financial assets to be controlled by the agency. Capital grants with enforceable contracts and sufficiently specific obligations are recognised as an unearned revenue liability when received and subsequently recognised progressively as revenue as or when the agency satisfies its obligations under the agreement. Where a non-financial asset is purchased, revenue is recognised at the point in time the asset is acquired and control transfers to the agency.

	AASB 1058.35
	For constructed assets, revenue is recognised over time, using the percentage of completion method, measured as the costs incurred as a proportion of estimated total project costs <delete if not applicable>.

	TD Income 43-46
	Grant revenue, passed on from a Territory Government-controlled entity with the exception of the Central Holding Authority, is recognised upfront on receipt, irrespective of which revenue accounting standard it may fall under in accordance with the Treasurer’s Direction on income 

	
	<delete if not applicable. Refer to paragraph 43 to 46 of Treasurer’s Direction on Income for recognition criteria for pass-on arrangements>

	
	Revenue in the form of community service obligations (CSO) is received by the agency where the agency is required to carry out activities on a non-commercial basis. CSO revenue is recognised when received. <delete if not applicable>

	AASB 15.114
	Revenue from contracts with customers have been disaggregated below into categories to enable users of these financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of income and cash flows. These categories include a description of the type of product or service line, type of customer and timing of transfer of goods and services.

	
	<Agency may choose to report disclosure in a table format as per below or provide a qualitative disclosure where it has very few agreements accounted for under AASB 15.>

	AASB 15.114
	Grant agreements that satisfy recognition requirements under AASB 15 are disaggregated below.


	
	
	
2023
	
2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Type of good and service:
	
	

	
	Regulatory services
	
	

	
	Service delivery
	
	

	
	Construction services
	
	

	
	Sales of goods
	
	

	
	Research services
	
	

	
	Other
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	

	
	Type of customer:
	
	

	
	Commonwealth Government
	
	

	
	State and territory governments
	
	

	
	Non-government entities
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	

	
	Timing of transfer of goods and services:
	
	

	
	Overtime
	
	

	
	Point in time
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	





[bookmark: _Ref135726541]Appropriation
	Appropriation recorded in the operating statement includes output appropriation and commonwealth appropriation received for the delivery of services.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2023
	
	2022
	

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 1058.26
AASB15.113(a)
	
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Output
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total appropriation in the operating statement
	
	
	
	
	
	



	Appropriation recorded in the cashflow statement includes capital appropriation and commonwealth capital appropriation received for the delivery of assets to be retained by the agency.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2023
	
	2022
	

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	

	
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total appropriation in the cashflow statement
	
	
	
	
	
	



	AASB 1058.38-39
TD Income 29
	Output appropriation is the operating payment to each agency for the outputs they provide as specified in the Appropriation Act. It does not include any allowance for major non-cash costs such as depreciation. Output appropriations do not have sufficiently specific performance obligations and recognised on receipt of funds.

	
	Commonwealth appropriation follows from the intergovernmental agreement on federal financial relations, resulting in specific purpose payments (SPPs) and national partnership (NP) payments being made by the Commonwealth Treasury to state treasuries, in a manner similar to arrangements for GST payments. These payments are received by the Department of Treasury and Finance on behalf of the Central Holding Authority and then passed on to the relevant agencies as Commonwealth appropriation. 

	AASB 15.9
AASB 15.119 AASB 1058.10
AASB 1058.31-36 

	Where appropriation received has an enforceable contract with sufficiently specific performance obligations as defined in AASB 15, revenue is recognised as and when goods and or services are transferred to the customer or third party beneficiary. Otherwise revenue is recognised when the agency gains control of the funds. <Agency to describe the nature of goods or services it has promised to transfer in agreement, when it typically satisfies its performance obligations and significant payment terms relevant to its agreements. For example, the agency’s contracts with customers is for the delivery of health services to the community. Funding is generally received upfront for 12 months and agency typically satisfies obligations and recognises revenue as services are being delivered as specified in the agreement.>

	AASB 15.114
	Revenue from contracts with customers have been disaggregated below into categories to enable users of these financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of income and cash flows. These categories include a description of the type of product or service line, type of customer and timing of transfer of goods and services.

	
	<Agency may choose to report disclosure in a table format as per below or provide a qualitative disclosure where it has very few agreements accounted for under AASB 15.>



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Type of good and service:
	
	

	
	Regulatory services
	
	

	
	Service delivery
	
	

	
	Construction services
	
	

	
	Sales of goods
	
	

	
	Research services
	
	

	
	Other
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	

	
	Type of customer:
	
	

	
	Commonwealth Government
	
	

	
	State and territory governments
	
	

	
	Non-government entities
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	

	
	Timing of transfer of goods and services:
	
	

	
	Overtime
	
	

	
	Point in time
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	




a) [bookmark: _Ref135034275]Summary of changes to budget appropriations
	AASB 1058.39
	The following table presents changes to budgeted appropriations authorised during the current financial year together with explanations for significant changes. It compares the amounts originally identified in the Appropriation (2022-2023) Act 2022 with revised appropriations as reported in 2023-24 Budget Paper No. 3 Agency Budget Statements and the final end of year appropriation.
The changes within this table relate only to appropriation and do not include agency revenue (for example, goods and services revenue and grants received directly by the agency) or expenditure. Refer to Note 36 Budgetary information for detailed information on variations to the agency’s actual outcome compared to budget for revenue and expenses.



	
	
	Original 
2022-23 budget appropriation(a)
	Revised 
2022-23 budget appropriation(b)
	Change to budget appropriation(c)
(b-a)
	Note(f)
	Final 
2022-23 budget appropriation(d)
	Change to budget appropriation (e)
(d-b)
	Note(f)

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	
	$000
	$000
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Output
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth(g)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total appropriation
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	<(a) This should equal the agency’s appropriation amounts included in Appropriation (2022-2023) Act 2022 Schedule.>

	<(b) This should equal the agency’s appropriation amounts included in 2023-24 Budget Paper No.3 Agency Budget Statements.>

	<(c) Change = amounts included in 2023-24 Budget Paper No.3 Agency Budget Statements – amounts included in Appropriation (2022-2023) Act 2022 Schedule >
<(d) This should equal the agency’s appropriation revenue recognised in the agency’s comprehensive operating statement.>
<(e) Change = agency’s appropriation revenue recognised in the agency’s comprehensive operating statement – amounts included in 2023-24 Budget Paper No.3 Agency Budget Statements>
<(f) Include note numbers against major variances, and corresponding notes below explaining these variances. An explanation might need to include causes that led to the variance noted and reference to revisions to the original budget if applicable.>
<(g) Must include  all appropriations received from Commonwealth including capital appropriation presented in the cash flow statement.>


	
	Output and capital appropriations reflect funding as a direct result of 
government-approved decisions, with actual funding received by the Department of <agency name> in line with the budgeted amounts. 
Commonwealth appropriation reflects funding anticipated to be received from the Commonwealth for both operational and capital purposes. As Commonwealth appropriations are largely recognised as or when performance obligations are satisfied, the actual amounts receipted by the Department of <agency name> and reported in these financial statements may vary from the budgeted amounts reported in this table.
The following are explanations of changes over $1 million or where there is a significant offset resulting in net changes under $1 million.
<Agencies to provide explanations of changes over $1 million or where there is a significant offset resulting in net variations under $1 million>

	
	



[bookmark: _Ref135726861]Sales of goods and services
	
	
	2023
	
	2022
	

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 15.113(a)
AASB 1058.24
	
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fees from regulatory services 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other goods and services revenue (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total sales of goods and services
	
	
	
	
	
	


<agencies to delete note or line items and corresponding disclosures below if not applicable>
<(a) Additional note disclosures that provide a breakdown of key components of a line item would be necessary where the reader may be uncertain as to what is included in that line item and the line item is a material income or expense.>
	
	Fees from regulatory services 

	TD Income 
30-33
	Revenue from regulatory fees is recognised when the agency satisfies its performance obligations. These include fees for the issue of licences. The agency’s sole performance obligations for the issue of a non-intellectual property licence is the issue of the licence, as such revenue is recognised upfront on issue of the licence. For intellectual property licences, revenue is recognised at a point in time or overtime as or when the performance obligation is satisfied. The agency recognises licences with a term less than 12 months or a low value of $10 000 or less, upfront on receipt of cash. 

	
	Other goods and services revenue 

	
	Sale of goods 

	AASB 15.31, 119, 123

	Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the agency satisfies a performance obligation by transferring the promised goods <include a description of the nature of goods the agency typically promises to transfer>. The agency typically satisfies its performance obligations when <insert when the control of goods is transferred to the customers, and disclose any significant judgements made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods>. The payments are typically due when <include a description of when it payments are typically made>.

	AASB 15.126
	Revenue from these sales are based on the price specified in the contract, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur. There is no element of financing present as sales are made with a short credit term. 

	
	Rendering of services

	AASB 15.31, 119, 123 
AASB 15.124-125



	Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the agency satisfies the performance obligation by transferring the promised services <include a description of the nature of services the agency typically promises to transfer>. The agency typically satisfies its performance obligations when <provide a description of when it typically satisfies its performance obligations>. < Where a performance obligation is satisfied overtime, include a description of the input or output method used in measuring progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligation and why the method used provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services. Where a performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, disclose the significant judgements made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of goods and services>.

	AASB 15.114
	Revenue from contracts with customers have been disaggregated below into categories to enable users of these financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of income and cash flows. These categories include a description of the type of product or service line, type of customer and timing of transfer of goods and services.

	
	<Agency may choose to report disclosure in a table format as per below or provide a qualitative disclosure where it has very few agreements accounted for under AASB 15.>


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Type of good and service:
	
	

	
	Regulatory services
	
	

	
	Service delivery
	
	

	
	Construction services
	
	

	
	Sales of goods
	
	

	
	Research services
	
	

	
	Other
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 
	
	

	
	Type of customer:
	
	

	
	Commonwealth Government
	
	

	
	State and territory governments
	
	

	
	Non-government entities
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers

	
	

	
	Timing of transfer of goods and services:
	
	

	
	Overtime
	
	

	
	Point in time
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	



[bookmark: _Ref72763528]Goods and services received free of charge
	TD A6.3.13
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Corporate and information services
	
	

	
	Repairs and maintenance
	
	

	
	<Detail other services where material and the cost can be reliably estimated.>
	
	

	
	Total goods and services received free of charge
	 
	 



	AASB 1058.18-22
	Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue when, and only when, a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Use of those resources is recognised as an expense. Resources received free of charge are recorded as either revenue or gains depending on their nature. 
Repairs and maintenance expenses incurred on the agency’s assets and costs associated with administration of these expenses are centralised and in the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Logistics on behalf of the agency, and form part of goods and services received free of charge by the agency. 

	
	In addition, the following corporate services staff and functions are centralised and provided by Department of Corporate and Digital Development on behalf of the agency and form part of goods and services received free of charge by the agency:
· financial services including accounts receivable, accounts payable and payroll
· employment and workforce services
· information management services
· procurement services
· property leasing services.

	
	<Agencies should disclose qualitative information about the nature of their dependence on other contributions received free of charge such as reliance on volunteer services that are not quantified in the financial statements, where applicable.>


[bookmark: _Ref72763540]Gain on disposal of assets
	AASB 101.34(a)

	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Net proceeds from the disposal of non-current assets (b)
	
	

	
	Less: Carrying value of non-current assets disposed (b)
	(     )
	(     )

	
	Gain (a) on the disposal of non-current assets (b)
	
	

	
	Proceeds from sale of minor assets
	
	

	
	Total gain on disposal of assets
	 
	 

	
	<(a) Replace 'Gain' with 'Loss' where a net loss is incurred. Use ‘gain/(loss)’ where current and comparative year figures include both a gain and a loss.>

	AASB 98(c)(d)
AASB 116.68 AASB 138.113 AASB 140.69 AASB 7.20(a)
	<(b) Information should be provided by asset class where gains/(losses) form a material part of agency income or expense. In addition, disclosures should be separately provided for non-current assets and other types of asset disposals (where applicable).>


[bookmark: _Ref135726922][bookmark: _Ref72763571]Other income

	
	
	2023
	
	2022
	

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 1058.26
AASB15.113(a)
	
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total
	Revenue from contracts with customers
	Other
	Total

	
	Rental income 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Miscellaneous revenue(a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Donated assets
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revenue related to service concession arrangement (b) 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total other income
	
	
	
	
	
	


<agencies to delete note or line items and corresponding disclosures below if not applicable>
<(a) Additional note disclosures that provide a breakdown of key components of a line item would be necessary where the reader may be uncertain as to what is included in that line item and the line item is a material income.>
<(b) This revenue reflects the progressive unwinding of the ‘grant of right to operate liability. Delete if not applicable.>
	
	Rental income 

	AASB 16.81
	Rental income arising from operating leasesincidental to the core functions of the department is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

	
	Miscellaneous revenue <include description of other key components where applicable>

	
	Miscellaneous revenue includes reimbursements, and research funding from 
non-government organisations <amend as required >. Where funding is received for agreements that are enforceable and contain sufficiently specific performance obligations for the agency to transfer goods or services to the grantor or third-party beneficiary, the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 as revenue from contracts with customers. Where this criteria is not met, revenue is generally accounted for under AASB 1058 and income is generally recognised upfront on receipt of funding. 

	
	Donated assets 

	AASB 1058.18-22
	Donated assets include assets received at below fair value or for nil consideration that can be measured reliably. These are recognised as revenue at their fair value when control over the assets is obtained, normally either on receipt of the assets or on notification the assets have been secured.

	
	Revenue related to service concession arrangements 

	AASB 1059.21-23
	Under a service concession arrangement where the grantor compensates the operator for the service concession asset and the provision of services, by granting the operator the right to earn revenue from third-party users of the service concession asset or access to another revenue-generating asset, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that will generate revenue for the grantor. The right granted to the operator to access the grantor’s underlying service concession asset is effective for the period of the service concession arrangement. As such, the grantor does not recognise revenue from the exchange immediately. Instead, a liability is recognised for revenue that is not yet earned. The revenue is then recognised according to the economic substance of the service concession arrangement, and the liability is reduced as revenue is recognised. 

	
	<Delete paragraphs below if not applicable.>

	AASB 15.110 
	<Where agency has revenue from contracts with customers, provide a description of the nature of services the agency typically promises to transfer, when it typically satisfies performance obligations.> <Where a performance obligation is satisfied overtime, include a description of the input or output method used in measuring progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligation and why the method used provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services. Where a performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, disclose the significant judgements made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of goods and services.>

	AASB 15.114
	Revenue from contracts with customers have been disaggregated below into categories to enable users of these financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of income and cash flows. These categories include a description of the type of product or service line, type of customer and timing of transfer of goods and services.

	
	<Agency may choose to report disclosure in a table format as per below or provide a qualitative disclosure where it has very few agreements accounted for under AASB 15.>



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Type of good and service:
	
	

	
	Regulatory services
	
	

	
	Service delivery
	
	

	
	Construction services
	
	

	
	Sales of goods
	
	

	
	Research services
	
	

	
	Other
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	

	
	Type of customer:
	
	

	
	Commonwealth Government
	
	

	
	State and territory governments
	
	

	
	Non-government entities
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers

	
	

	
	Timing of transfer of goods and services:
	
	

	
	Overtime
	
	

	
	Point in time
	
	

	
	Total revenue from contracts with customers 

	
	


[bookmark: _Ref135726934]Purchases of goods and services
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	AASB 101.97
	The net surplus/(deficit) has been arrived at after charging the following expenses:
	
	

	
	Goods and services expenses:
	
	

	
	Consultants1
	
	

	
	Advertising2
	
	

	
	Marketing and promotion3
	
	

	
	Document production
	
	

	
	Legal expenses4
	
	

	
	Recruitment5
	
	

	
	Training and study
	
	

	
	Official duty fares
	
	

	
	Travelling allowance
	
	

	
	Information technology charges and communications
	
	

	
	Other
	
	

	
	Total purchases of goods and services
	 
	 

	
	1 Includes marketing, promotion and IT consultants.
2 Does not include recruitment related advertising or advertising for marketing and promotion.

	
	3 Includes advertising for marketing and promotion but excludes marketing and promotion consultants’ expenses, which are incorporated in the consultants’ category.
4 Includes legal fees, claim and settlement costs.
5 Includes recruitment-related advertising costs.

	
	<The above disclosures are the minimum expense disclosures required. Agencies must add other expense line items in addition to those above that are either greater than 10% of total goods and service expenses or less than 10% but considered material for the agency. The note must reconcile with the total goods and services expenses>
Purchases of goods and services generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations, including supplies and service costs recognised in the reporting period in which they are incurred.
Repairs and maintenance expense
Costs associated with repairs and maintenance works on agency assets are expensed as incurred <only for DIPL, Department of Territory Families, Housing and Communities, Land Development Corporation, Territory Wildlife Park. Delete if not applicable or amend wording accordingly>. 


[bookmark: _Ref132641015][bookmark: _Ref72763588]Grant and subsidies expenses
a) [bookmark: _Ref135726946]Current grant and subsidy expense <delete if not applicable>
	
	2023
	2022

	
	$000
	$000

	                    Current grant <specify grants by recipient>
                    Local government (a)
	
	

	                    Private and not-for-profit sector (b)
	
	

	                    Other sectors of government (c)
	
	

	                    Other (d)
	
	

	                    Total current grants
	
	

	
	
	

	                    Subsidy <specify subsidies by recipient>
                    Local government (a)
	
	

	                    Private and not-for-profit sector (b)
	
	

	                    Other sectors of government (c)
	
	

	                    Other (d)
	
	

	                    Total subsidies
	
	

	                    Total current grant and subsidy expense 
	
	



<(a) include grants provided to NT Local Government Councils>
<(b) include grants provided to the following:
· Resident private non-financial corporations
· Resident private depository corporations
· Resident households
· Resident non-profit institutions serving households
· Other resident private financial corporations
· Residents not elsewhere classified
· Non-resident private depository corporations
· Non-residents not elsewhere classified>
<(c) include grants provided to the following:
· Other Northern Territory general government agencies and government business divisions
· Indigenous Essential Services Pty Ltd
· Land Development Corporation
· Power Generation Corporation
· Power Retail Corporation
· Power and Water Corporation
<(d) include grants provided to all other entities not included in note (a) to (c) above>
Current grants expenses are intended to finance the current activities of the recipient for which no economic benefits of equal value are receivable in return. Current grant expense largely comprise <include a general description of what the agency’s current grant payments generally relate to>.
Subsidies are payments aimed at reducing all or part of the costs of an activity. They include payments made to <include a general description of what the agency’s subsidy payments generally relate to>
Current grant and subsidy expenses are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are paid or payable, exclusive of the amount of GST.  
b) Capital grant expense <delete if not applicable>

	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	<specify grant by recipient>
Local government (a)
	
	

	
	Private and not-for-profit sector (b)
	
	

	
	Other sectors of government (c)
	
	

	
	Other (d)
	
	

	
	Total capital grant expense
	
	

	

	
<(a) include grants provided to NT Local Government Councils>
<(b) include grants provided to the following:
· Resident private non-financial corporations
· Resident private depository corporations
· Resident households
· Resident non-profit institutions serving households
· Other resident private financial corporations
· Residents not elsewhere classified
· Non-resident private depository corporations
· Non-residents not elsewhere classified>
<(c) include grants provided to the following:
· Other Northern Territory general government agencies and government business divisions
· Indigenous Essential Services Pty Ltd
· Land Development Corporation
· Power Generation Corporation
· Power Retail Corporation
· Power and Water Corporation
<(d) include grants provided to all other entities not included in note (a) to (c) above>
Capital grant expenses are transfers made to a recipient for the purpose of acquiring or constructing a new physical asset or upgrading an existing physical asset, for which no economic benefits of equal value are receivable in return. It also includes the transfer of existing agency assets to another entity for which no economic benefits of equal value are receivable in return. Capital grant expenses largely comprise of <include a general description of what the agency’s capital grant payments generally relate to>. 

Capital grant expenses are recognised in the reporting period in which they are paid or payable, exclusive of the amount of GST. Where an existing agency asset is transferred to a recipient, the transaction is recognised when the agency transfers control of asset to the recipient. 



c) Community service obligations <delete if not applicable>
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	<specify name of community service obligation by recipient>
	
	

	
	Local government (a)
	
	

	
	Private and not-for-profit sector (b)
	
	

	
	Other sectors of government (c)
	
	

	
	Other (d)
	
	

	
	Total community service obligations
	
	

	

	

<(a) include grants provided to NT Local Government Councils>
<(b) include grants provided to the following:
· Resident private non-financial corporations
· Resident private depository corporations
· Resident households
· Resident non-profit institutions serving households
· Other resident private financial corporations
· Residents not elsewhere classified
· Non-resident private depository corporations
· Non-residents not elsewhere classified>
<(c) include grants provided to the following:
· Other Northern Territory general government agencies and government business divisions
· Indigenous Essential Services Pty Ltd
· Land Development Corporation
· Power Generation Corporation
· Power Retail Corporation
· Power and Water Corporation
<(d) include grants provided to all other entities not included in note (a) to (c) above>
Community service obligations (CSO) are payments the agency makes to a government business division or a government owned corporation to compensate them for undertaking activities they would not elect to undertake on a commercial basis or would only undertake commercially at a higher price. CSO payments are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are paid or payable, exclusive of the amount of GST.


[bookmark: _Ref132641037]Interest expenses
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	AASB 16.49, 53(b)
	Interest from lease liabilities
	
	

	AASB 123.6
	Interest from loans and advances
	
	

	AASB 1059.B68
	Interest from service concession liabilities
	
	

	AASB 7.20(b)
	Total interest expenses
	
	

	AASB 123.5,6

	Interest expenses consist of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. It includes interest on loans and advances, lease liabilities and service concession liabilities <amend as required>.



[bookmark: _Ref73709323][bookmark: _Ref135727012]Write-offs, postponements, waiver, gifts and ex gratia payments
	s9(3) Financial Management Act 1995

	The following table presents all write-offs, waivers, postponements, gifts and ex gratia payments approved under the 
Financial Management Act 1995 or other legislation that the agency administers.

	
	
	Agency
	Territory items
	

	
	
	2023
	No. of trans.
	2022
	No. of trans.
	2023
	No. of trans.
	2022
	No. of trans.
	Note(b)

	
	 
	$000
	 
	$000
	 
	$000
	 
	$000
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Authorised under the Financial Management Act 1995
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Write-offs, postponements and waivers approved by the Treasurer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Write-offs, postponements and waivers due to COVID-191
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Irrecoverable amounts payable to the Territory or an agency written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Losses or deficiencies of money written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Value of public property written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Postponement of right to receive or recover money or property
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Waiver of right to receive or recover money or property
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Total write-offs, postponements and waivers approved by the Treasurer
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Write-offs, postponements and waivers approved by delegates
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Irrecoverable amounts payable to the Territory or an agency written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Losses or deficiencies of money written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Value of public property written off
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Postponement of right to receive or recover money or property
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Waiver of right to receive or recover money or property
	
	
	 
	
	 
	 
	
	
	

	
	Total write-offs, postponements and waivers approved by delegates
	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total write-offs, postponements and waivers
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	 
	 
	
	 
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gifts approved by the Treasurer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gifts approved by delegate
	
	
	 
	 
	
	 
	
	
	

	
	Total gifts
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ex gratia payments
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total authorised under the Financial Management Act 1995
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Authorised under other legislation
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Write-offs, postponements and waivers(a)
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Gifts(a)
	
	
	 
	 
	
	 
	
	
	

	
	Total authorised under other legislation
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	1To ease financial hardship faced by individuals and businesses as a result of the COVID-19, the Treasurer  postponed the payment date for a number of regulatory fees and charges.<delete if not applicable or amend wording as appropriate>
< Note must include all postponements approved by a delegate or Treasurer. A postponement is either an alternative payment arrangement with a debtor to recover public money for a period exceeding 12 months from the due date or deferral of receipt of an item of public property to a date exceeding 12 months from the due date.>
<The above disclosures are material by nature and are required regardless of the number of write-offs, postponements, waivers, gifts or ex gratia payments. Where an agency has no current or comparative year disclosures, the above table may be removed and the following added: 'The <agency> had no write-offs, postponements, waivers, gifts or ex gratia payments in 2022-23 and 2021-22.'> 
	

	
	<(a) Provide additional disclosures noting the specific legislation under which these write-offs, postponements, waivers and gifts were made.>
	

	
	<(b) Provide additional disclosures to describe significant items included in each line.>
	

	
	<Note: Information contained in this Note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements, and should be provided to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency’s financial statements.>
	



	[bookmark: _Ref73018423]
	Write-off 

	
	[bookmark: _Ref519670173]Write-offs reflect the removal from accounting records the value of public money or public property owing to, or loss sustained by the Territory or agency. It refers to circumstance where the Territory or an agency has made all attempts to pursue the debt, however, is deemed irrecoverable due to reasons beyond the Territory or an agency’s control. Write-offs result in no cash outlay and are accounted for under ‘Other administrative expenses’ in the Comprehensive Operating Statement. 

	
	Waiver 

	
	Waivers reflect the election to forego a legal right to recover public money or receive public property. Once agreed with and communicated to the debtor, it will have the effect of extinguishing the debt and renouncing the right to any future claim on that public money or public property. Waivers result in no cash outlay, and are accounted for under ‘Current grants and subsidies expense’ in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.

	
	Postponement 

	
	A postponement is a deferral of a right to recover public money or receipt of public property from its due date. This has no effect on revenues or expenses recognised but may affect cash inflows or assets in use.

	
	Gifts

	
	A gift is an asset or property, deemed surplus to government’s requirements, transferred to a suitable recipient, without receiving any consideration or compensation, and where there is no constructive or legal obligation for the transfer. Gifted property is accounted under ‘Other administrative expenses’ in the Comprehensive Operating Statement. 

	
	Ex gratia

	
	Ex gratia payments or act-of-grace payments are gratuitous payments where no legal obligation exists. All ex gratia payments are approved by the Treasurer. Ex gratia payments result in cash outlay and are accounted for under ‘Purchases of goods and services’ in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.


[bookmark: _Ref135727044]Cash and deposits
	AASB 107.6-8,45
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Cash on hand
	
	

	
	Cash at bank
	
	

	
	On call or short-term deposits
	
	

	
	Total cash and deposits
	 
	 



	AASB 107.6-8, 
45-46
AASB 101.54(i)
	For the purposes of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand, cash at bank and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term investments that are readily convertible to cash. Cash at bank includes monies held in the Accountable Officer’s Trust Account (AOTA) that are ultimately payable to the beneficial owner – refer also to Note 26.


[bookmark: _Ref73542143]Cash flow reconciliation
	
	a) Reconciliation of cash

	AASB 107.45
	The total of agency ‘Cash and deposits’ of $<X> recorded in the balance sheet is consistent with that recorded as ‘Cash’ in the cash flow statement. 

	
	<or> 

	
	<Agencies are required to provide a reconciliation of the total of ‘Cash and deposits’ recorded in the balance sheet and Note 14 to that recorded in the cash flow statement where a variance exists>

	AASB 1054.16, AASB 107. Aus20.2
	Reconciliation of net surplus/deficit to net cash from operating activities


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Net surplus/deficit
	
	

	
	Non-cash items:
	
	

	
	Depreciation and amortisation
	
	

	
	Asset write-offs/write-downs
	
	

	
	Asset donations/gifts
	
	

	
	Gain/loss on disposal of assets
	
	

	
	<include other agency-specific non-cash items as required>
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Changes in assets and liabilities:
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in receivables
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in inventories
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in prepayments 
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in other assets
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in payables
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in provision for employee benefits
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in other provisions
	
	

	
	Decrease/increase in other liabilities
	
	

	
	Net cash from/(used in) operating activities
	 
	 



b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
	
	2023
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Cash flows
	
	Other
	

	AASB 107.44A. 44B, 44C
	
	1 July
	Loans and advances
	Securities
	Lease liabilities repayments
	Service concession liabilities
	Other
	Total cash flows
	
	Other
	Total other
	30 June

	
	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Deposits held
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Borrowings and advances
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Cash flows
	
	Other
	

	
	
	1 July
	Loans and advances
	Securities
	Lease liabilities repayments
	Service concession liabilities
	Other
	Total cash flows
	
	Other
	Total other
	30 June

	
	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Deposits held
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Borrowings and advances
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	< Agencies must also disclose financial assets with cash flows that were or will be included in cash flows from financing activities. Agencies may amend row and column headers not applicable. If changes are made, agencies must ensure this template still meets the disclosure requirements of AASB 107>

	
	c) Non-cash financing and investing activities

	
	Lease transactions

	AASB 107.43, 44
	During the financial year, the agency recorded right-of-use asset(s) for the lease of <disclose the type of asset> with an aggregate value of $<X> (2022:$< X>). < Amend wording or delete as required>

	
	<Agencies must disclose all non-cash financing and investing transactions that occurred during the reporting period (for example, lease arrangements, asset donations and transfers of non-cash assets.> 



[bookmark: _Ref73541832]Receivables
	AASB 101.78(b)
AASB 7.6
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Accounts receivable
	
	

	AASB 7.35H
	Less: loss allowance 
	(     )
	(     )

	
	
	
	

	AASB 15.105, 116(a)
	Contract receivables
	
	

	AASB 15.113(b),
AASB 7.35H
	Less: loss allowance
	               (     )
	(     )

	AASB 15.105, 116(a)
	Accrued contract revenue
	
	

	AASB 15.113(b),
AASB 7.35H
	Less: loss allowance
	(     )
	(     )

	
	Interest receivables
	
	

	AASB Interpretation 1031
	GST receivables
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Prepayments
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Other receivables
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Non-current
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Accounts receivable
	
	

	
	Less: loss allowance 
	(     )
	(     )

	
	
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Prepayments
	
	

	AASB 101.78(b)
	Other receivables
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total receivables
	 
	 

	
	<Add ‘Less: allowance for impairment losses’ to other receivable classes where required.>

	AASB 9.5.1.1, AASB 9.5.1.3
	Receivables are initially recognised when the agency becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Receivables include contract receivables, accounts receivable, accrued contract revenue and other receivables.

	AASB 9.4.1.2, AASB 9.5.4.1
	Receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairments.

	
	Accounts receivable and contract receivables are generally settled within <X> days and other receivables within <X> days. 

	AASB 9.5.5.1
	The loss allowance reflects lifetime expected credit losses and represents the amount of receivables the agency estimates are likely to be uncollectible and are considered doubtful.

	
	Accrued contract revenue

	AASB 15.116(a)

	Accrued contract revenue relates to the agency’s right to consideration in exchange for works completed but not invoiced at the reporting date in respect of <provide a description of the works completed but not billed at the reporting date>. Once the agency’s rights to payment becomes unconditional, usually on issue of an invoice, accrued contract revenue balances are reclassified as contract receivables. Accrued revenue that does not arise from contracts with customers are reported as part of other receivables.

	AASB 15.118
	Significant changes in accrued contract revenue balances during the year was due to …… <agency to explain how the timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations relates to the typical timing of payment and the effect those factors have on the accrued contract revenue. For example, a significant change in accrued contract revenue balances could be due to a change in timeframe for a right in consideration to become unconditional and thus a delay in reclassification of a accrued contract revenue to a contract receivable> < amend wording to suite agency circumstances or delete if not applicable>.

	
	Prepayments

	
	Prepayments represent payments made in advance of receipt of goods and services. Prepayments are recognised on an accrual basis and amortised over the period in which the economic benefits from these assets are received.

	
	

	AASB 7.35M
	Credit risk exposure of receivables

	AASB 9.5.5.15
	Receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure exposure to bad debts is not significant. The entity applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses. This approach recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses for all accounts receivables, contracts receivables and accrued contract revenue. To measure expected credit losses, receivables have been grouped based on shared risk characteristics and days past due. <Agency may use groupings for debtors it considers appropriate, for example, by geographic location or risk profile. If there is more than one grouping, agency should disclose expected credit losses for each grouping in separate tables.> 

	
	The expected loss rates are based on historical observed loss rates, adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information, including macroeconomic factors on <agency must disclose any relevant macroeconomic information it uses to adjust its loss rates, for example, unemployment rate, gross domestic product, consumer price index>.

	
	In accordance with the provisions of the FMA, receivables are written off when based on demonstrated actions to collect, there is no reasonable expectation of recovery for reasons beyond the agency’s control.

	
	The agency’s credit risk exposure has not materially changed due to minimal business disruption experienced as a result of COVID-19. There is no material impact on the agency’s expected credit losses due to COVID-19. <Agency to amend words accordingly>

	
	The loss allowance for receivables at reporting date represents the amount of receivables the agency estimates is likely to be uncollectible and is considered doubtful. Ageing analysis and reconciliation of loss allowance for receivables as at the reporting date are disclosed below.
Internal receivables reflect amounts owing from entities controlled by the Northern Territory Government such as other agencies, government business divisions and government owned corporations. External receivables reflect amounts owing from third parties which are external to the Northern Territory Government.



Ageing analysis
	AASB 7.35M(b), 35N
	
	2023
	
	2022

	
	
	Gross
Receivables(b)
	Loss rate
	Expected
credit losses
	Net receivables
	
	Gross
receivables
	Loss rate
	Expected
credit losses
	Net receivables

	
	
	$000
	%
	$000
	$000
	
	$000
	%
	$000
	$000

	
	Internal receivables(a)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Not overdue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for less than 30 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for 30 to 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for more than 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total internal receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	External receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Not overdue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for less than 30 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for 30 to 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for more than 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total external receivables
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	
	Total amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts and prepayments as these do not meet the definition of a financial instrument and therefore will not reconcile the receivables note. It also excludes accrued contract revenue where no loss allowance has been provided.


Reconciliation of loss allowance for receivables
	AASB 7.35H
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Internal receivables(a)
	
	

	
	Opening balance
	
	

	
	Written off during the year
	
	

	
	Recovered during the year
	
	

	
	Increase/decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss
	
	

	
	Total internal receivables
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	External receivables
	
	

	
	Opening balance
	
	

	
	Written off during the year
	
	

	
	Recovered during the year
	
	

	
	Increase/decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss
	
	

	
	Total external receivables
	
	

	
	
<(a)Agencies must disclose internal or external receivables separately as per tables above. Internal receivables relate to entities controlled by the NTG (entities listed in TAFR 2021-22 Note 48: Details of controlled entities at reporting date), whereas external receivables are from parties external to the NTG>
<(b)Agencies should include sum of Accounts Receivable, Contract Receivable, Interest Receivable and Other Receivable less any statutory receivables and allowance. Accrued contract revenue should only be included if there is loss allowance provided.>
<Reconciliation of loss allowances includes loss allowances attributed to contract receivables and accrued contract revenue.>

	
	<Note: Information contained in this note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements and should be provided separately to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency's financial statements.>


[bookmark: _Ref73541838]Inventories
	AASB 101.78(c) 
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 102.6

	
	$000
	$000

	
	General inventories
	
	

	
	At cost
	
	

	
	At net realisable value
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Inventories held for distribution
	
	

	
	At cost
	
	

	
	At current replacement cost
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total inventories
	 
	 



	
	<Where inventories form a material part of agency assets, each type of inventory should also be disclosed under the ‘General’ or ‘Held for distribution’ headings.>



	AASB 102.6
	Inventories include assets held either for sale (general inventories) or distribution at no or nominal consideration in the ordinary course of business operations.

	AASB 102.9
	General inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, while those held for distribution are carried at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Cost of inventories includes all costs associated with bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. When inventories are acquired at no or nominal consideration, the cost will be the current replacement cost at date of acquisition. 

	AASB 102.10, 25
	The cost of inventories are assigned using a mixture of first in, first out or weighted average cost formula, or using specific identification of their individual costs. 

	AASB 102.33
	Inventory held for distribution is regularly assessed for obsolescence and loss.

	AASB 102. Aus36.1
	During the year the agency was required to write-off $X ($X in 2022) of <inventory class> due to <agency-specific reason>. <Agencies must disclose this where a material portion of inventory was written off or written down during the year. Disclosure may be excluded if not applicable for the current and comparative year. This must also be included in the balance of public property written off disclosed in Note 13 Write-offs, postponements, waivers, gifts and ex gratia payments.>

	
	<Amend or delete words accordingly> 


[bookmark: _Ref73541843]Advances and investments
	AASB 101.77, 78, AASB 7.6
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current
	
	

	
	Advances paid (a)
	
	

	
	Less: loss allowance 
	(    )
	(    )

	
	
	
	

	
	Investments in shares
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Non current
	
	

	
	Advances paid (a)
	
	

	
	Less: loss allowance
	(    )
	(    )

	
	
	
	

	
	Equity accounted investments (b)
	
	

	
	Investments in shares (c)
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Total advances and investments
	
	

	
	a) Advances paid

	AASB 9.5.1.1, 5.1.1A
	Advances paid are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus relevant transaction costs and are recognised in the balance sheet when the agency becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Where the advances are provided with interest free periods or at concessional interest rates, they are considered to have a fair value which is less than the amount lent. This fair value is calculated in accordance with Note 33. The difference between the amount lent and the fair value is recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income statement except when loss is deferred.

	AASB 9.5.2.1
	Subsequently, advances paid are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The average discount rate used to calculate the amortised cost is XX%. 

	AASB 9.5.1.1, 5.1.1A
	Deferred losses are subsequently recognised in the comprehensive operating statement using an effective interest rate method consistent with the associated advances or are remeasured if the is a reduction in the expected loss.
Included within the advances balance is a deferred loss of $xx as at 30 June 2023 ($xx as at 30 June 2022), relating to <Agencies must include description of advances to which deferred loss relate to.> <delete paragraphs on deferred loss if not applicable>

	AASB 9.5.5.1, 5.5.3,5.5.5
	Loss allowances on advances paid reflect either 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses depending on changes in credit risk and represents the amount of advances paid the agency estimates are likely to be uncollectible and are considered doubtful. <Agencies must amend this paragraph to reflect how loss allowances are calculated.> 

	
	Credit risk exposure of advances paid

	AASB 7.35M
	Advances paid are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure exposure to bad debts is not significant. The agency applies the AASB 9 general approach to measuring expected credit losses. This approach recognises a loss allowance based on 
12-month expected credit losses if there has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and lifetime expected credit losses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

	AASB 7.35H,M
	The loss allowance for advances paid represents amount of advances paid the agency estimates to be uncollectible and is considered doubtful. Ageing analysis and reconciliation of loss allowance for advances paid as at the reporting date are disclosed below.
Internal advances paid reflect those provided to entities controlled by the Northern Territory Government such as other agencies, government business divisions and government owned corporations. External advances paid reflect those provided to third parties which are external to the Northern Territory Government.



Ageing analysis

	
	
	2023
	
	2022

	
	
	Gross
advances paid
	Loss rate
	Expected
credit losses
	Net advances paid
	
	Gross
advances paid
	Loss rate
	Expected
credit losses
	Net advances paid

	
	
	$000
	%
	$000
	$000
	
	$000
	%
	$000
	$000

	
	Internal advances paid(a)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Not overdue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for less than 
30 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for 30 to 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for more than 
60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total internal advances paid
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	External advances paid
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Not overdue
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for less than 
30 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for 30 to 60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overdue for more than 
60 days
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total external advances paid
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	


Reconciliation of loss allowance for advances paid
	
AASB 7.35H
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Internal advances paid(a)
	
	

	
	Opening balance
	
	

	
	Written off during the year
	
	

	
	Recovered during the year
	
	

	
	Increase/decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss
	
	

	
	Total internal advances paid
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	External advances paid
	
	

	
	Opening balance
	
	

	
	Written off during the year
	
	

	
	Recovered during the year
	
	

	
	Increase/decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss
	
	

	
	Total external advances paid
	
	

	

	
<(a)Agencies must disclose internal or external advances paid separately as per tables above. Internal receivables relate to entities controlled by the NTG (entities listed in TAFR 2021-22 Note 48: Details of controlled entities at reporting date), whereas external receivables are from parties external to the NTG>
<Note: Information contained in this note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements and should be provided separately to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency's financial statements.>                                  


	
	b) Equity accounted investments

	AASB 128.3,5
	Equity accounted investments comprises of interests in associates and/or joint ventures. 

	
	Associates are those entities in which the agency has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the agency has joint control, where the agency has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

	AASB 128.10
	Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the investment balance is adjusted for the agency's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

	
	<Sample disclosures below are applicable where the agency has material and immaterial associates. A more detailed disclosure is required for each material associate. Individually immaterial associates can be disclosed in aggregate.>

	
	Associates

	AASB 12.20, 21,22
	The agency has the following associate/s which are equity accounted for.

	
	
	
	Ownership interest
	Amount

	
	Name of associate
	Principal activity and place of business
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	
	
	%
	%
	$000
	$000

	
	Company A
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Company B
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Immaterial associates
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total equity accounted investments
	
	
	
	

	AASB 12.B15
	Material associates <disclosures are required below for each material associate>

	
	The following is summarised financial information for Company A, based on its respective financial statements prepared in accordance with the Australian accounting standards, modified for fair value adjustments on acquisition and differences in the agency's accounting policies.


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Revenue
	
	

	
	Profit or loss for the year
	
	

	
	Other comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Total comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Elimination of unrealised profit on downstream sales (if any)
	
	

	
	Agency’s share of total comprehensive income
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Current assets
	
	

	
	Non-current assets
	
	

	
	Current liabilities
	(  )
	(  )

	
	Non-current liabilities
	(  )
	(  )

	
	Net assets
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Agency’s interest in net assets of associate at beginning of year
	
	

	
	Agency’s share of total comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Dividends received during the year
	(  )
	(  )

	
	Agency's interest in net assets at the end of the year
	
	

	
	Elimination of unrealised profit on downstream sales (if any)
	(  )
	(  )

	
	Carrying amount of interest in associate at 30 June
	
	



	AASB 12.B16
	Immaterial associates
The following is summarised financial information for the agency's interest in immaterial associates, based on the amounts reported in the financial statements:

	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount of interests in immaterial associates
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Agency's share of associates:
	
	

	
	Profit or loss for the year
	
	

	
	Other comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Total comprehensive income
	
	



<Other disclosure requirements include:
	AASB 12.22(a)
	(a) nature and extent of any significant restrictions (for example, resulting from borrowing arrangements, regulatory requirements or contractual arrangements between investors with joint control of or significant influence over a joint venture or an associate) on the ability of joint ventures or associates to transfer funds to the entity in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the entity.

	AASB 12.22(b)
	(b) when the financial statements of a joint venture or associate used in applying the equity method are as of a date or for a period that is different from that of the entity: (i) the date of the end of the reporting period of the financial statements of that joint venture or associate; and (ii) the reason for using a different date or period. 

	AASB 12.22(c)
	(c) the unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture or associate, both for the reporting period and cumulatively, if the entity has stopped recognising its share of losses of the joint venture or associate when applying the equity method.>

	AASB 7.11A, 11B
	c) Investment in shares

	
	Investment in shares represents ownership interest in an entity in the form of shares or units held where there is no significant influence, control or joint control over the entity.

	
	Investment in shares is recognised at fair value at the time of acquisition and subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

	
	The agency holds the investment to facilitate the delivery of government strategic priorities. <Agency to provide a description on the type of investment and intention for holding the investment accordingly, for example, investment is under a Territory Government initiative.>








Reconciliation of investment in shares
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	

	
	Transfers in/(out)
	
	

	
	Revaluation adjustments
	
	

	
	Total investments in shares
	
	




	
	
	Fair value
	Dividend income

	
	
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Investment in Company A or
	
	
	
	

	
	Name of the scheme
	
	
	
	

	
	Total investment in shares
	
	
	
	

	
	No investments were disposed of during 2023, and there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to these investments. <Amend accordingly if there is any transfer including the reason for such transfers.> 

	
	<Agency must also disclose significant judgements and assumptions made in instances where the agency determines that significant influence does not exist, even though more than 20% of the voting rights are held>





[bookmark: _Ref72764212]Other financial assets
	AASB 101.77
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current
	
	

	
	Lease receivables
	
	

	
	Others
	
	

	
	
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Non current
	
	

	
	Lease receivables
	
	

	
	Others
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total other financial assets
	 
	 

	
	<Add ‘Less: allowance for impairment losses’ to other receivable classes where required.>

	
	a. Agency as a lessor

	
	<Insert general description of the lessor’s leasing arrangements, including nature and how the entity manages risks, for example, buy-backs, residual value guarantees, etc. This includes peppercorn lease arrangement.> 

	AASB 16.61-62
	Leases under which the agency assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases. 

	TD Leases 22-25
	Subleases are classified by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. A sublease is an arrangement where the underlying asset is re-leased by a lessee (intermediate lessor) to another party, and the lease (head lease) between the head lessor and original lessee remains in effect.

	
	Finance leases

	AASB 16.67
	At the lease commencement date, the entity recognises a receivable for assets held under a finance lease in its statement of financial position at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The net investment in leases is classified as financial assets amortised cost and equals the lease payments receivable by a lessor and the unguaranteed residual value, plus initial direct costs, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease Initial direct costs.

	AASB 16.75
	Finance income arising from finance leases is recognised over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.

	
	<option 1> 

	
	The agency does not have any finance lease or sublease arrangements.

	
	<option 2> 

	
	The agency entered into a XX-year finance lease or sublease arrangement <agency to amend accordingly> with Entity A to lease <disclose type of leased asset>. 

	
	<Agency to expand disclosure to include information regarding the nature of the lessor’s leasing activities, how the agency manages the risk associated with any rights it retains in underlying assets and description of how the finance sublease recognition criteria are met in reference to Treasurer’s Direction – Leases paragraphs 22-25.>

	AASB 16.94
	Future minimum rentals receivable (undiscounted) under non-cancellable finance lease at 30 June are as follows(a):



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	

	
	Total
	
	


Reconciliation of net investment in leases at 30 June are as follows:
	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 16.94
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Future undiscounted rentals receivable
	
	

	
	Unguaranteed residual amounts – undiscounted
	
	

	
	Less: Unearned finance income
	
	

	
	Net investment in finance leases
	
	

	
	<(a)Agency must replace the disclosures in the table with a narrative disclosure where the lease arrangement is a peppercorn lease.>

	
	Operating leases

	AASB 16.62

AASB 16.81
	An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

	
	<The following paragraphs are example disclosures only and agency should tailor the disclosure based on their existing operating lease arrangements.> 

	
	The agency owns land that is leased to tenants under operating lease arrangements with rentals payable monthly. Lease payments for some contracts include CPI increases, but there are no other variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

	
	The agency also subleases floor space in Facility A, which is leased under a 
30-year head lease agreement. All subleases have lease terms of five years or less and are classified as operating subleases.

	AASB 16.97
	Future minimum rentals receivable (undiscounted) under non-cancellable operating lease as at 30 June are as follows(a):



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	

	
	Total
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	<(a) Agency must replace the disclosures in the table with a narrative disclosure where the lease arrangement is a peppercorn lease.>

	
	b. Contract cost asset

	AASB 15.95
	Costs to obtain a contract are expensed where goods and services will be transferred within one year or less and only capitalised if deemed material. Territory Government employee costs that satisfy the criteria for recognition as a cost to fulfil a contract are not capitalised and expensed immediately. Other costs to fulfil a contract are accounted for as a contract cost asset if deemed material. For the 2022-23 and 2021-22 financial years, no costs were capitalised as a contract cost asset <Amend wording accordingly. Where agencies have material contract cost assets, please contact the Department of Treasury and Finance for appropriate codes to use to capture these costs.>


[bookmark: _Ref72763608]


[bookmark: _Ref73541766]Property, plant and equipment
a) Total property, plant and equipment
	AASB 101.78(a)
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 116.73(d)
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Land
	
	

	
	At fair value
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Buildings 
	
	

	
	At fair value
	
	

	
	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(   )
	(   )

	
	
	
	

	
	Infrastructure
	
	

	
	At fair value
	
	

	
	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(   )
	(   )

	
	
	
	

	
	Construction (work in progress)
	
	

	
	At capitalised cost
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Plant and equipment
	
	

	
	At fair value
	
	

	
	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(   )
	(   )

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Total property, plant and equipment 
	 
	 

	





	<Agencies may remove (or add) asset class line items that are not applicable (applicable) to each agency.>


	
	



	
	Reconciliation of carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Property, plant and equipment includes right-of-use assets under AASB 16 Leases and service concession assets under AASB 1059. Further information on right-of-use assets and service concession assets <delete if not applicable> are disclosed in 
Note 21 and Note 22 respectively <delete if not applicable>. A reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end year is set out below:


	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Carrying amount as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(vii)
	Depreciation/amortisation expense 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	<Classes of assets should be consistent with agency changes that are otherwise made to this prescribed format. Additional note disclosures for material assets and asset movements may be included as required. Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Additional line items may be required for items such as: 'Assets reclassified as assets held for sale' and 'Assets reclassified as investment property' where these items represent material agency movements.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>





	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Carrying amount as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(vii)
	Depreciation/amortisation expense 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 116.73(e)
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	<Classes of assets should be consistent with agency changes that are otherwise made to this prescribed format. Additional note disclosures for material assets and asset movements may be included as required. Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Additional line items may be required for such items as: 'Assets reclassified as assets held for sale and 'Assets reclassified as investment property' where these items represent material agency movements.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>


	
	<Disclosures in Note 20b and 20c only applies to agencies that are lessors (lessor under head lease and intermediate lessor under a sublease). These notes disclose the property, plant and equipment held and used by the agency and the agency’s property, plant and equipment subject to operating leases. The totals of Note 20b and 20c should match back to Note 20a.>

	AASB 16.95, AASB 116.73 (e)
	b) Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment held and used by the agency

	
	A reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held and used by the agency to deliver its outputs and services to the public is set out below:

	
	2023


	

	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount as at 1 July
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<Classes of assets should be consistent with agency changes that are otherwise made to this prescribed format. Additional note disclosures for material assets and asset movements may be included as required. Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Additional line items may be required for such items as: 'Assets reclassified as assets held for sale and 'Assets reclassified as investment property' where these items represent material agency movements.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>


	AASB 16.95, AASB 116.73 (e)
	c) Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment where the agency is a lessor under operating leases

	
	<Agencies must only include PPE leased out to entities external to Territory Government in this Note. GBD’s must include all PPE leased out> <These assets should reflect functions described in Note 19a: Other financial assets - agency as a lessor>

	
	A reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment where the agency is a lessor under operating leases is set out below. These assets are leased by public and non-government organisations for the purpose of providing services to the community.


	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Construction (work in progress)
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<Classes of assets should be consistent with agency changes that are otherwise made to this prescribed format. Additional note disclosures for material assets and asset movements may be included as required. Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed. Additional line items may be required for such items as: 'Assets reclassified as assets held for sale and 'Assets reclassified as investment property' where these items represent material agency movements.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>







	
	Acquisitions

	AASB 116.15,
16,31
	Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the requirements of other accounting standards.

	TD A2.2.2
	All items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value, equal to or greater than $10 000 are recognised in the year of acquisition and depreciated as outlined below. Items of property, plant and equipment below the $10 000 threshold are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

	AASB 116.16
	The construction cost of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials and direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

	
	Complex assets

	
	Major items of plant and equipment comprising a number of components that have different useful lives, are accounted for as separate assets. The components may be replaced during the useful life of the complex asset.

	
	Subsequent additional costs

	AASB 116.13
	Costs incurred on property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed performance of the asset will flow to the agency in future years. Where these costs represent separate components of a complex asset, they are accounted for as separate assets and separately depreciated over their expected useful lives.

	
	Construction (work in progress)

	TD A2.11.3
	As part of the financial management framework, the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Logistics is responsible for managing general government capital works projects on a whole of government basis. Therefore appropriation for <most or all agency> capital works is provided directly to the Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Logistics and the cost of construction work in progress is recognised as an asset of that department. Once completed, capital works assets are transferred to the agency. 

	
	Revaluations and impairment

	
	Revaluation of assets

	ASSB 116.31, 73(a), TD A2.4.2
	Subsequent to initial recognition, assets belonging to the following classes of non-current assets are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from their fair value at reporting date: 

	
	· land

	
	· buildings

	
	· infrastructure assets

	
	

	AASB116.73(a), 
TD A2.4.3
	Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, which is deemed to equate to fair value.

	TD Leases.33, 35
AASB 16.29
	For right-of-use assets, the net present value of the remaining lease payments is often an appropriate proxy for the fair value of relevant right-of-use assets at the time of initial recognition. Subsequently, right-of-use assets are stated at cost less depreciation, which is deemed to equate to fair value. 

	TD Leases.36, AASB 16.Aus25.1,
29

	For right-of-use assets under leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the agency to further its objectives, the agency has elected to measure the asset at cost. These right-of-use assets are not subject to revaluation.

	AASB 116.7(b), 
TD A2.1.5(v)
	The unique nature of <asset category> may preclude reliable measurement. Such assets have not been recognised in the financial statements. 

	
	<Agencies that have these assets should expand these disclosures to include narrative information in relation to the type of assets precluded and reasons why assets were not recognised.>

	AASB 116.77
	The latest revaluations as at <date> were <specify whether or not revaluations were independently conducted>. The valuer was <specify the name of the valuer>. Refer to Note 33: Fair value for additional disclosures.

	
	<Agencies will need to change the above disclosures depending on individual agency circumstances.>

	
	<Agencies should consider the impact of COVID-19 on fair values of assets, valued using the market or income approaches. The fair value of assets measured using current replacement cost is not expected to significantly move in the short term. Agencies should:

	
	identify assets measured using income or market-based approaches that are more susceptible to material changes in valuation at 30 June 2023

	
	consider impairment of assets where not dealt with under existing fair value re-measurements.>

	
	Impairment of assets

	AASB 136.8
	An asset is said to be impaired when the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

	AASB 136.9
AASB 136.59
	Non-current physical agency assets are assessed for any indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If any indicator of impairment exists, the agency determines the asset’s recoverable amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset’s current replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Any amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

	AASB 136.60,61, Aus61.1
	Impairment losses are recognised in the comprehensive operating statement. They are disclosed as an expense unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. Where the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus for that class of asset to the extent an available balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus.

	AASB 136.114,117
	In certain situations, an impairment loss may subsequently be reversed. Impairment loss may only be reversed only if there has been change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, nor exceed the net carrying amount that would have been determined had not impairment loss been recognised for the asset in the prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment reversal results in an increase in the asset revaluation surplus. Note 32 provides additional information in relation to the asset revaluation surplus.

	AASB136.9
	Agency property, plant and equipment assets were assessed for impairment as at 
30 June 2023. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.

	
	<or>

	AASB136.9
	Agency property, plant and equipment assets were assessed for impairment as at 
30 June 2023. As a result of this review $X of impairment losses were recognised against <asset class>. Impairment losses were charged to the asset revaluation surplus <or expenses – agencies to adjust depending on accounting treatment for each asset class.>

	
	<Where impairment losses are incurred, the following line item is required to be added under the ‘Less: accumulated depreciation’ line for each impaired class of assets: ‘Less: accumulated impairment losses’.>

	
	Depreciation and amortisation expense

	AASB 116.50, 73(b)
AASB 16.31
	Items of property, plant and equipment, including buildings but excluding land, have limited useful lives and are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

	AASB116.73(c), AASB138.118(a)
	The estimated useful lives for each class of asset are in accordance with the Treasurer’s Directions and are determined as follows:


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	Buildings
	XX - XX years
	XX – XX years

	
	Infrastructure assets
	XX – XX years
	XX – XX years

	
	Plant and equipment
	XX – XX years
	XX – XX years


	
	Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or from the time an asset is completed and held ready for use. 

	
	The estimated useful lives disclosed above includes the useful lives of right-of-use assets under AASB 16 and service concession assets under AASB 1059.  For further detail, refer to Note 21 and 22, respectively. <amend as required>. 

	
	


[bookmark: _Ref72763620] Agency as a lessee
	AASB 16.52
AASB 16.59(a-d)
	< Agency to provide a general description of the leasing arrangements as a lessee; the agency’s potential exposure to future cash outflows due to variable lease payments, lease extension/termination options, residual value guarantees, leases not yet commenced to which the agency is committed; restrictions or covenants imposed by leases; and sale and leaseback transactions.>

	
	<The paragraphs below are a sample disclosure only and agency must tailor the disclosure to existing lease arrangements specific to the agency> 

	
	The agency leases <disclose the type and nature of lease arrangement, for example, office accommodation, social and employee housing, land, public private partnership arrangements not in the scope of AASB 1059, vehicles and medical equipment.  Where an agency has a significant/material lease arrangement, the type and nature of lease arrangement must be disclosed separately.> Lease contracts are typically made for fixed periods of X to XX years, but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants. The agency does not provide residual value guarantees in relation to leases. <If a lease agreement contains restrictions or covenants or the agency provides residual value guarantees, this paragraph should be amended accordingly.> 

	AASB 16.59(b)
	Extension and termination options are included in a number of <disclose type of leases with extension and termination options for example property and equipment leases>. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the agency and not by the respective lessor. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). 

	AASB 16.59(b)
	Potential future cash outflows of $XXX,000(a) have not been included in the lease liability because it is not reasonably certain the leases will be extended (or not terminated). The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs that affects this assessment and is within the control of the lessee. During the current financial year, the financial effect of revising lease terms to reflect the effect of exercising extension and termination options was an increase (or decrease) in recognised lease liabilities and right-of-use assets of $XXX,000(b). 

	AASB 16.60
TD Lease.6(b)(c)
	The agency has elected to recognise payments for short-term leases and low value leases as expenses on a straight-line basis, instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less with no purchase option. Low value assets are assets with a fair value of $10,000 or less when new and not subject to a sublease arrangement comprise mainly [insert main asset types].

	
	<(a)Disclose the value of undiscounted future cash flows from lease arrangements with extension options available but not exercised thus not included in the lease liability calculation.>

	
	<(b)Disclose amount of any remeasurement adjustment due to change in lease term.>

	
	Right-of-use asset

	AASB 16.47(a)(ii)
AASB 16.Aus 25.2
	The following table presents reconciliation of right-of-use assets (including concessionary leases) included in the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at Note 20.


	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	

	
AASB 16.53-54
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Balance as at 1 July
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers in/(out)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation expense 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements including remeasurement
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	

	
AASB 16.53-54
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Plant and equipment
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Balance as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers in/(out)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation expense 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements including remeasurement
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	<Classes of assets should be consistent with agency changes that are otherwise made to this prescribed format. Additional note disclosures for material assets and asset movements may be included as required. Line items with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>





The following amounts were recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year in respect of leases where the agency is the lessee:
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	AASB 16.53(a)
	Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
	
	

	AASB 16.53(b)
	Interest expense on lease liabilities
	
	

	AASB 16.53(c) 
	Expense relating to short-term leases (a)
	
	

	AASB 16.53(d)
	Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (a)
	
	

	AASB 16.53(e)
	Variable lease payments, not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (a)
	
	

	
	Intergovernmental leases (a), (b) (not applicable to GBDs)
	
	

	AASB 16.53(f)
	Income from subleasing right-of-use assets
	
	

	AASB 16.53(i)
	Gains or losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions
	
	

	
	Total amount recognised in the comprehensive operating statement
	
	

	
	<(a)Examples of commonly used standard class codes to record lease expenses for inclusion in this note are: 322000 General property management, 325000 Land rent expense, 362100 and 362200 Motor vehicles – operating lease expenses and hire charges, 365100 and 365200 Other equipment – operating lease expenses and hire charges, 372100 and 372200 Transport equipment – operating lease expenses and hire charges net of the lease contra accounts (329000 Property management and 378200 Purchases of goods and services>

	
	<(b)Only include if agency is paying a real charge to another agency. ICT charges from DCDD (for example, mfd, desktop, phone etc) are to be excluded as these arrangements are a subscription rather than a lease under AASB 16.>

	
	Recognition and measurement 

	AASB 16.9

	The agency assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

	
	The agency recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

	AASB 16.23,24
	The agency recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted by any lease payments made at or before the commencement date and lease incentives, any initial direct costs incurred, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset or restoring the site.

	AASB 16.31
	Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 16.31
	Land
	X to X years
	X to X years

	
	Building
	X to X years
	X to X years

	
	Infrastructure
	X to X years
	X to X years

	
	Plant and equipment
	X to X years
	X to X years

	AASB 16.32
	If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the agency at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

	AASB 16.29-30,
TD Lease.35-36
	The right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at fair value which approximates costs except for those arising from leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the agency to further its objectives and are also subject to impairment.

	AASB 16.29
	The right-of-use assets are subject to remeasurement principles consistent with the lease liability including indexation and market rent review that approximates fair value and only revalued where a trigger or event may indicate their carrying amount does not equal fair value.

	
	Inter-governmental leases <This note is not applicable to GBDs in accordance with TD Lease.7.>

	TD Lease.6(a)
	The agency applies the inter-governmental leases recognition exemption as per the Treasurer’s Direction – Leases and recognises these as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. These largely relate to the lease of motor vehicles from 
NT Fleet. Leases of commercial properties for office accommodation are centralised with the Department of Corporate and Digital Development (DCDD). Consequently all lease liabilities and right-of-use assets relating to these arrangements are recognised by DCDD and not disclosed within these financial statements.

	AASB 16.Aus59.1
	Leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the agency to further its objectives

	
	<For each material lease or each aggregation of leases with similar characteristics that have significantly below-market terms and conditions (including peppercorn leases), disclose the agency’s dependence on such leases, and the nature and terms of lease, including the lease payments, the lease term, a description of the underlying assets and restriction of the use of the underlying assets.>

	
	<The paragraph below is a sample disclosure only and agency must tailor the disclosure to existing concessionary lease arrangements of the agency (including peppercorn leases).>

	
	The agency entered into a 10-year lease with a local council for the use of a residential building. The lease contract specifies lease payments of $100 per annum. The leased premised must be used by the agency to provide accommodation to the homeless. This residential building accounts for a small portion of similar assets the agency is using for the purpose of providing services to the homeless. Therefore, it does not have a significant impact on the agency’s operation.

	AASB 16.Aus25.1, 29
	Right-of-use assets under leases at significantly below-market terms and conditions that are entered into principally to enable the agency to further its objectives, are measured at cost.

	AASB 16.31
	These right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, subject to impairment. They are not subject to revaluation.


[bookmark: _Ref73541777]Service concession assets <delete if not applicable>
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	
	Building1


	AASB 1059.29
	Service concession assets
	
	

	AASB 116.73(d)
	Gross carrying amount
	
	

	
	Less: Accumulated depreciation
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	
	


							
	AASB 116.73(e)
	Reconciliation of carrying amount
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	

	
	Acquisition 
	
	

	
	Disposal
	
	

	
	Transfers in/(out) 
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation expense 
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	
	

	
	
	
	


<1Disclose by class of asset.  If agency has more than one asset class, then it should be presented separately.>
<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>
	AASB 1059.7,8,9





AASB 1059.28(c)(ii)

	Service concession assets are measured at current replacement cost on initial recognition or reclassification and are subsequently measured at fair value (determined using current replacement cost). The assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, which range from xx to xx years.
During the current period, the net carrying amount of $XX (FY 2022: $XX) for existing assets of the entity has been reclassified as service concession assets. <delete or amend statement as applicable.>
The agency’s accounting policies on fair value measurement and impairment for property, plant and equipment disclosed in Note 20 also apply to service concession assets.

	AASB 1059.28
	Specific accounting policies and disclosures for each of the agency’s service concession arrangements are provided below.



	AASB 1059.28
	Service Concession Arrangement 1 (SCA 1) 
<Agency should provide following information at minimum:
· Name and description of SCA
· Period of arrangement
· Terms of the arrangements (specify significant terms of the arrangement where applicable
· Rights and obligations (specify rights from the operator and obligations to the operator, where applicable)
· Changes in arrangements occurred during the FY 2022-23 and 2021-22,
· The carrying amount of service concession assets at 30 June 2023 and 2022 and relevant class of PP&E.>
Service Concession Arrangement 2 (SCA 2)
<Include separate disclosures as applicable for each service concession arrangement.>


[bookmark: _Ref73541786][bookmark: _Ref132641172]Intangibles
a) Total intangibles
	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 138.118
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Intangibles with a finite useful life
	
	

	
	Computer software
	
	

	
	Gross carrying amount
	
	

	
	Less: accumulated amortisation
	(      )
	(      )

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Other intangibles
	
	

	
	Gross carrying amount
	
	

	
	Less: accumulated amortisation
	(      )
	(      )

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Software work in progress
	
	

	
	At capitalised cost
	
	

	
AASB 138.118
	
	
	

	
	Intangibles with an infinite useful life
	
	

	
	Other intangibles
	
	

	
	Gross carrying amount
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Total intangibles
	 
	 

	
	<Please refer to AASB 138 for help with distinguishing between different categories of intangibles.>

	






AASB 138.21
AASB 138.24,Aus24.1








	The agency’s intangibles comprise of <specify the makeup of agency’s intangible asset balance, for example, computer software>.
The agency recognises intangible assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the agency and the costs of the asset can be measured reliably. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Intangible assets arising from configuration and customisation costs for an application software in a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) arrangement are only recognised where the services create a separately identifiable software code from which the agency has the power to both obtain the future economic benefits and restrict others’ access to those benefits. <Amend or delete wording if not applicable.>

	AASB 138.81,124
	There is no active market for any of the agency’s intangible assets. As such, intangible assets are recognised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses <amend as required>.

	

AASB  138.97,118(b)
AASB 138.118(a)
               



	<Agencies must amend commentary to align with the individual agency circumstances>
Intangibles with limited useful lives are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which reflects the pattern of when expected economic benefits are likely to be realised. 
The estimated useful lives for finite intangible assets are determined in accordance with the Treasurer’s Directions and are determined as follows:
                                                          2023                                2022
Computer software                          X to X years                  X to X years
<Include other relevant categories of intangibles assets>. < Disclosures can be made in words. For example: The estimated useful lives for intangible assets were X to X years in 2022-23 and X to X years in 2021-22>.

	AASB 136.9,10, 
	Intangible assets with finite useful life are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If any indicator of impairment exists, the agency determines the asset’s recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as an impairment loss.

	AASB 138.108-109
	Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

	
	<option 1> Agency intangible assets were assessed for impairment as at 30 June 2023. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.

	
	<OR>

	AASB 138.108-109 AASB 136.60,61, Aus61.1
	<option 2> Agency intangible assets were assessed for impairment as at 30 June 2023. As a result of this review $<X> of impairment losses were recognised against <asset class>. Impairment losses were charged to the asset revaluation surplus <or expenses – agency to adjust depending on accounting treatment for each asset class>.

	
	<Where impairment losses are incurred, the following line item must be added under the ‘Less: accumulated amortisation’ line for each impaired class of assets: ‘Less: accumulated impairment losses’.>



a) 
	AASB 138.118 (e)
	b) Reconciliation of carrying amount of intangibles
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2023
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Computer software
	Other intangibles
	Softwarework in progress
	Total

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Intangibles with a finite useful life
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	

	
	Amortisation
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June
	 
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	Intangibles with an infinite useful life
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>


	
	2022
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Computer Software
	Other intangibles
	Software work in progress
	Total

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Intangibles with a finite useful life
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	

	
	Amortisation
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June
	 
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	Intangibles with an infinite useful life
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/decrements
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>



[bookmark: _Ref132641183]Heritage and cultural assets
	AASB 116.73
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount
	
	

	
	Gross carrying amount 
	
	

	
	Less: Accumulated depreciation
	(   )
	(   )

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Reconciliation of carrying amount
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	

	
	Additions
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from administrative restructuring 
	
	

	
	Additions/disposals from asset transfers 
	
	

	
	Disposals
	
	

	
	Depreciation
	
	

	
	Revaluation increments/(decrements)
	
	

	
	Impairment losses (a)
	
	

	
	Impairment losses reversed (a)
	
	

	
	Other movements <describe where material>
	
	

	
	Carrying amount as at 30 June 
	 
	 

	







AASB 116.7(b), 
TD A2.1.5(v)
	The agency’s heritage and cultural assets comprise of <specify main makeup of the agency’s heritage and cultural assets, for example, works of art, monuments > 
The agency recognises heritage and cultural assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the agency and the costs of the asset can be measured reliably. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
The unique nature of <asset category> may preclude reliable measurement. Such assets have not been recognised in the financial statements.
<Agencies that have these assets should expand these disclosures to include narrative information in relation to the type of assets precluded and reasons why assets were not recognised, such as works of art, monuments, etc.>

	AASB 116.31, 73(a), 77
TD A2.4.2
	The latest revaluations as at <date> were <specify whether or not revaluations were independently conducted>. The valuer was <specify the name of the valuer>. Refer to Note 33: Fair value measurement for additional disclosures.

	
	<Agencies will need to change the above depending on individual agency circumstances.>

	
AASB 116.50,73(b)


AASB116.73(c)
	Heritage and cultural assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful lives heritage and cultural assets were X to X years in 2022-23 and X to X years in 2021-22 and are in accordance with the Treasurer’s Directions.

	AASB136.9
	Heritage and cultural assets are assessed for any indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If any indicator of impairment exists, the agency determines the asset’s recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as an impairment loss.
<option 1> Agency heritage and cultural assets were assessed for impairment as at 30 June 2023. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.

	
	<OR>

	
	<option 2> Agency heritage and cultural assets were assessed for impairment as at 30 June 2023. As a result of this review $<X> of impairment losses were recognised against <asset class>. Impairment losses were charged to the asset revaluation surplus <or expenses – agency to adjust depending on accounting treatment for each asset class>.

	
	<Where impairment losses are incurred, the following line item is required to be added under the ‘Less: Accumulated depreciation’ line for each impaired class of assets: ‘Less: Accumulated impairment losses’.>

	
	<(a) For use where impairment losses are recognised (or reversed) in 'Expenses'. Agency asset impairment losses relating to revalued assets are recorded as revaluation decrements to the extent that a balance exists in the 'Asset revaluation surplus' for that class of asset.>


[bookmark: _Ref73541847]Assets held for sale
	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 5.38, 40
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Land
	
	

	
	Property, plant and equipment
	
	

	
	Total assets held for sale
	
	



	AASB 5.41-42
	<Agency to provide description of non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-sale, reasons for the classification / measurement as held-for-sale, description of the facts and circumstances leading to the expected disposal and the expected manner and timing of that disposal.>
<If an agency ceases to classify an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, a description of the facts and circumstances leading to the decision and the effect of the decision on the results of operations.>

	AASB 5.6-7
	Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction or a grant agreement rather than continuing use. Assets held for sale consist of those assets that management has determined are available for immediate sale or granting in their present condition and their sale is highly probable within one year from the date of classification. 

	AASB 5.15,25
	These assets are measured at the lower of the asset’s carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. These assets are not depreciated. Non-current assets held for sale have been recognised on the face of the financial statements as current assets.


[bookmark: _Ref135143879][bookmark: _Ref73542076]Deposits held
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Accountable officer’s trust account (a)
	
	

	
	Clearing money
	
	

	
	Other <describe where material>
	
	

	
	Total deposits held
	 
	 


Deposits held mainly comprise Accountable Officer’s Trust Account, clearing money and <agency to amend accordingly>. 
Accountable Officer’s Trust Accounts hold trust monies established under legislationsheld by the by the agency on behalf of others for a specific purpose and not for use in operations of government. These include <agency to disclose type of AOTAs). 
Clearing money is public money in transit that is payable to another entity.  These funds typically do no contribute to the operations of the agency.
	TD Part 2 Section 2 Trust money
	a) Accountable officer’s trust account <delete if not applicable>
Accountable officer’s trust account balances comprise:


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Retention money
	
	

	
	Bond money
Security deposit
	
	

	
	Unclaimed money
	
	

	
	Total accountable officer’s trust account
	 
	 


<Agencies should amend descriptions of trust monies as required to suit agency circumstances. All types of trust money that are material should be separately disclosed. AOTA note disclosures may be removed where an agency does not have an AOTA. >
[bookmark: _Ref135143895]Payables
	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 101.77
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Accounts payable 
	
	

	
	Accrued salaries and wages
	
	

	
	Other accrued expenses
	
	

	
	Other payables <describe where material>
	
	

	
	Total payables
	 
	 

	AASB 101.117
	Liabilities for accounts payable and other amounts payable are carried at amortised cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the agency. Accounts payable are normally settled within 20 days from receipt of valid of invoices under $1 million or 30 days for invoices over $1 million.

	
	Salaries and wages that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are recognised and measured at the amounts expected to be paid.


[bookmark: _Ref73542081]Borrowings and advances
	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 101.54(m), 77, 78
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current 
	
	

	
	Loans and advances
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities <delete if not applicable>
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Non current
	
	

	
	Loans and advances
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities <delete if not applicable>
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total borrowings and advances
	 
	 

	
	

	
	
Loans and advances

	AASB 101.117, AASB 9.4.2.1. 5.1.1, 5.7.2
	Loans and advances are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in net surplus/(deficit) when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

	
	
Lease liabilities

	AASB 101.117, AASB 16.26 -27
	At the commencement date of the lease where the agency is the lessee, the agency recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. Lease payments include:

	
	· fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable

	
	· variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate

	
	· amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees

	
	· exercise price of a purchase options reasonably certain to be exercised by the agency

	
	· payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the agency exercising the option to terminate.

	AASB 16.38(b)
	Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

	AASB 16.26
TD Lease.34
	Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for the agency’s leases, the Northern Territory Treasury Corporation’s institutional bond rate is used as the incremental borrowing rate.

	AASB 16.36
	After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (such as changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.


The following table presents liabilities under leases.
	AASB 16.53
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Balance at 1 July 
	
	

	
	Additions/remeasurements
	
	

	
	Interest expenses
	
	

	
	Payments
	
	

	
	Balance at 30 June 
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	AASB 16.53(g)
	The agency had total cash outflows for leases of $XXX in 2023 ($XXX in 2022).


Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases not recorded as liability are as follows:
	AASB 16.58
	
	2023(a)
	2022(a)

	
	
	Internal(b)
	External(b)
	Internal(b)
	External(b)

	
	Not later than one year
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<(a)Disclose lease commitments not recorded as liability which meet the lease exemptions detailed in Treasurer’s Direction – Leases paragraph 6 including short term leases, low value lease assets, leases of other intangible assets and intergovernmental leases (paid as real charge).> 
<(b) Internal commitments should reflect commitments with entities controlled by the NTG only (entities listed in TAFR 2021-22 Note 48: details of controlled entities at reporting date) where costs are real charges and not notional charges. External commitments should reflect those payments to third parties external to the NTG.>


	AASB 101.117,
AASB 1059. 15-17
	Service concession liabilities <delete if not applicable>
Service concession liabilities are recorded initially at fair value of contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial liabilities to the operator under service concession arrangements. Subsequent to initial recognition, service concession liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, refer to Note 22 for further details on the agency’s service concession arrangements. 


[bookmark: _Ref73542086]Provisions
	AASB 101.77,78
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current 
	
	

	
	Employee benefits
	
	

	
	Recreation leave
	
	

	
	Leave loading 
	
	

	
	Other employee benefits <describe where material>
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Other current provisions
	
	

	
	Other provisions <describe and reconcile where material>
	
	

	
	
	 
	 

	
	Non-current
	
	

	
	Employee benefits
	
	

	
	Other employee benefits <describe where material>
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Other non-current provisions
	
	

	
	Other provisions <describe and reconcile where material>
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total provisions
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	AASB 137.84
	Reconciliations of provisions (other than employee benefits) (a)
	
	

	
	Balance at 1 July
	
	

	
	Additional provisions recognised
	
	

	
	Reductions arising from payments
	
	

	
	Effect of changes in assumptions
	
	

	
	Effect of discount unwind
	
	

	
	<describe other material movements where applicable>
	
	

	
	Balance at 30 June
	 
	 

	
	

	
	<(a) A reconciliation of provisions is only required for material provisions other than employee benefits. Reconciliations of material employee benefit provisions is not required by Australian accounting standards.>

	
	Employee benefits 

	AASB 119.9,11,16



	Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries and recreation leave. Liabilities arising in respect of recreation leave and other employee benefit liabilities that fall due within 12 months of reporting date are classified as current liabilities and are measured at amounts expected to be paid. Non-current employee benefit liabilities that fall due after 12 months of the reporting date are measured at present value of estimated future cash flows, calculated using the appropriate government bond rate and taking into consideration expected future salary and wage levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
All recreation leave is classified as a current liability.

	
	No provision is made for sick leave, which is non-vesting, as the anticipated pattern of future sick leave to be taken is less than the entitlement accruing in each reporting period. 

	AASB 119.131
	Employee benefit expenses are recognised on a net basis in respect of the following categories:

	
	wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, recreation leave and other leave entitlements 

	
	other types of employee benefits.

	
	As part of the financial management framework, the Central Holding Authority assumes the long service leave liabilities of government agencies, including <agency> and therefore no long service leave liability is recognised within these financial statements.
The Agency employed <X> employees as at 30 June 2023 (<X> employees as at 30 June 2022).


[bookmark: _Ref73542090]Other liabilities
	AASB 101.77,78
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Current 
	
	

	AASB 9.4.2.1
	Financial guarantee liability
	
	

	AASB 15.116
	Unearned contract revenue liability(a) 
	
	

	AASB 1058.31
	Unearned capital grants liability(b) 
	
	

	AASB 1059.21
	Unearned service concession liability(c) <delete if not applicable>
	
	

	
	Other liabilities <describe where material>
	 
	 

	
	
	
	 

	
	Non-current 
	
	

	AASB 15.116
	Unearned contract revenue liability(a) 
	
	

	AASB 1058.31
	Unearned capital grants liability(b)
	
	

	AASB 1059.21
	Unearned service concession liability(c) <delete if not applicable> 
	
	

	
	Other liabilities <describe where material>
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	Total other liabilities
	 
	 



	
	< (a) Refer to the following standard classification codes to collate information – current accounts include 914100,914600 and 914900. Non-current accounts include 932100, 932600 and 932900>.

	
	< (b) Refer to the following standard classification codes to collate information – current accounts include 914200 and 914300. Non-current accounts include 932200 and 932300>.

	
	<(c) This is the unearned portion of the revenue from service concession assets and is progressively reduced over the period of the arrangement. Refer to Note22 for further information on service concession arrangements.> <delete if not applicable>

	
	Financial guarantee liability

	TD Guarantees and indemnities 24-26
AASB 9.4.2.1 (c), B2.5

	Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued where the total value being guaranteed is greater than 
$1 million. The liability is initially measured at fair value, calculated as the present value of the difference between the net contractual cash flows required under a debt instruments and the net contractual cash flows that would have been required without the guarantee. The present value is calculated using <agency to provide discount rate used for the calculation>. 

	AASB 9.4.2.1 (c), B2.5

	At the end of each subsequent reporting period, financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

	
	The amount of the loss allowance at each subsequent reporting period equals the 12-month expected credit losses. However, where there has been a significant increase in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract, the loss allowance is equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. <Agencies to amend accordingly.>

	
	Expected credit losses for a financial guarantee contract are the cash shortfalls adjusted by the risks that are specific to the cash flows. Cash shortfalls are the difference between:

	
	· the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs

	
	· any amount that an entity expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

	
	The agency’s provided financial guarantees include to support local businesses to grow the economy and create Territory jobs. <Note: This is just an example, agency to amend accordingly.>

	
	Unearned contract revenue liability

	AASB 15.117


AASB 15.118
	Unearned contract revenue liability relate to consideration received in advance from customers in respect of <include a description of what unearned contract revenue balances largely relate to>. Unearned contract revenue liability balances as at 30 June 2023 is XXX (balance at 1 July 2022 was XXX). <Explain how the timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations relates to the typical timing of payment and the effect those factors have on the unearned contract revenue. For example, a significant change in unearned contract revenue balances could be due to a change in time frame for a performance obligation to be satisfied>. <Explain significant changes in the contract asset and contract liability balances during the period which shall include qualitative and quantitative information. <For example: Significant changes in unearned contract revenue during the year is largely due to a decrease in unearned contract revenue largely attributable to the delivery of counselling services to youth in a specified remote community offset by increases in new funding received from the Commonwealth under a National Partnership Agreement for the delivery of safe accommodation services for disadvantaged youth>. 

	AASB 15.116
	Of the amount included in the unearned contract revenue liability balance as at 1 July 2022, $XXX has been recognised as revenue in 2022-23 financial year.

	
	Revenue recognised in 2022-23 from performance obligations satisfied or partially satisfied in previous period is $XXX. This is mainly due to a reassessment of the estimate of progress towards satisfaction for <include a description of performance obligation that was reassessed and resulted in the recognition of revenue in the current reporting period for a performance obligation that was satisfied in a previous reporting period >.

	AASB 15.120
	The agency anticipates to recognise as revenue, any liabilities for unsatisfied obligations as at the end of the reporting period in accordance with the time bands below:


	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years 
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	

	
	Total
	
	



	
	Unearned capital grants liability

	AASB 1058.31
	Unearned capital grants liability relate to contributions to enable the agency to acquire or construct a non financial asset to be controlled by the agency, received in advance of the agency satisfying the performance obligation. This balance is predominantly made up of <add description of funding/s received to which the unearned capital grants liability relates to>.
The table below is a reconciliation of unearned capital grants liability. <delete if not applicable> 



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Carrying amount at 1 July
	
	

	
	Add: receipt of cash during the financial year
Less: income recognised during the financial year (a) 
	
	

	
	Carrying amount at 30 June
	
	

	
	< (a) Revenue recorded may not equate to total revenue recognised for capital grants as additional revenue may be recognised for works which have taken place but grantor has not been billed or funding has not been received yet.>

	
	For assets acquired, performance obligations are typically satisfied at the point in time the asset is acquired. 

	
	<delete if not applicable.>

	AASB 1058.32
	For constructed assets, performance obligations are typically satisfied overtime as the asset is constructed and revenue is recognised accordingly. An input method is used to measure the progress towards the satisfaction of performance obligations and hence the amount of revenue recognised. The progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligations is measured using the percentage of completion method, which is the cost incurred to date as a proportion of the total project costs. 

	AASB 1058.33
	The agency anticipates to recognise as income, any liability for unsatisfied obligations as at the end of the reporting period in accordance with the time bands below:



	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years 
Later than five years 
	
	

	
	Total  (a)
	
	



	
	< (a) Note: Figure must align with the closing balance of unearned capital grants liability.>

	
	<Agency may choose to disclose information on when it expects to recognise as income, unearned capital grant liability balances as at the end of the reporting period in a words instead of using a table.> 

	
	<Agency must disclose any significant judgements and changes in judgements made that significantly affect the determination of the timing and amount of income, in particular judgments made in determining the timing of satisfaction of obligations.>

	
	Superannuation

	
	Employees' superannuation entitlements are provided through the:

	
	Northern Territory Government and Public Authorities Superannuation Scheme (NTGPASS)

	
	Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS)

	
	or non-government employee nominated schemes for those employees commencing on or after 10 August 1999. 

	
	The agency makes superannuation contributions on behalf of its employees to the Central Holding Authority or non-government employee-nominated schemes. Superannuation liabilities related to government superannuation schemes are held by the Central Holding Authority and therefore not recognised in agency financial statements. 

	
	<Agencies will need to amend the above to suit specific agency circumstances in relation to superannuation.> 


[bookmark: _Ref135727229][bookmark: _Ref73709553]Commitments
	
	Commitments represent future obligations or cash outflows that can be reliably measured and arise out of a contractual arrangement and typically binds the agency to performance conditions. Commitments are not recognised as liabilities on the balance sheet.  
Commitments may extend over multiple reporting periods and may result in payment of compensation or return of funds if obligations are breached.

	
	Internal commitments reflect commitments with entities controlled by the Northern Territory Government such as other agencies, government business divisions and government owned corporations. External commitments reflect those to third parties which are external to the Northern Territory Government.
Disclosures in relation to capital and other commitments are detailed below. 



a) Capital expenditure commitments1
	AASB 116.74(c)
AASB 138.122(e)
AASB 140.75(h)
	Capital expenditure commitments primarily related to the construction of <insert non-financial asset class or classes – for example, buildings>. These contracts are expected to be payable as follows(b):

	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	Internal(a)
	External(a)
	Internal(a)
	External(a)1

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	Total capital expenditure commitments (exclusive of GST)
	
	
	
	

	
	Plus: GST recoverable
	
	
	
	

	
	Total capital expenditure commitments (inclusive of GST)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	




	
	1 Excludes amounts recognised as unearned revenue in the agency’s financial records. <Agency must exclude amounts recognised as an unearned revenue in the agency’s financial records where funding is received in advance. Where revenue for a contract has been recognised upfront, agency must disclose requirements to meet future commitments in this note.>

	
	<(a) Internal commitments should reflect commitments with entities controlled by the NTG (entities listed in TAFR 2021-22 Note 48: details of controlled entities at reporting date), whereas external commitments should reflect those to third parties external to the NTG.>




	
	<(b) Agencies should provide the above disclosures by asset class where commitments are material and commitments do not predominantly relate to a single asset class.>


 



	
	<Note: Information contained in this note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements and should be provided to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency’s financial statements.>


b) Other non-cancellable contract commitments1
	
	Other non-cancellable contract commitments predominantly comprise of <insert description of material non-cancellable contract commitments>. These contracts are expected to be payable as follows(b):

	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	Internal(a)
	External(a)
	Internal(a)
	External(a)1

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Not later than one year
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than one year and not later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	Later than five years
	
	
	
	

	
	Total other non-cancellable contract commitments (exclusive of GST)
	
	
	
	

	
	Plus: GST recoverable
	
	
	
	

	
	Total other non-cancellable contract commitments (inclusive of GST)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	

	
	1 Excludes capital and lease commitments, but includes maintenance contracts. Also excludes amounts recognised as unearned revenue in the agency’s financial records. <Agency must exclude amounts recognised as an unearned revenue in the agency’s financial records where funding is received in advance. Where revenue for a contract has been recognised upfront, agency must disclose requirements to meet future commitments in this note.>

	
	<(a) Internal commitments should reflect commitments with entities controlled by the NTG (entities listed in TAFR 2021-22 Note 48: details of controlled entities at reporting date), whereas external commitments should reflect those to third parties external to the NTG.>




	
	<(b) Agencies should provide the above disclosures by asset class where commitments are material and commitments do not predominantly relate to a single asset class.>


 



	
	<Note: Information contained in this note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements and should be provided to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency’s financial statements.>





[bookmark: _Ref72918841]Reserves
	
	<Movements in individual reserve accounts to be separately disclosed. Other reserve accounts include those recording changes in value of available-for-sale financial assets and changes in value of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge.>

	
	Asset revaluation surplus

	
	(i) Nature and purpose of the asset revaluation surplus

	AASB 101.79(b)
	The asset revaluation surplus includes the net revaluation increments and decrements arising from the revaluation of non-current assets. Impairment adjustments may also be recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. 


	
	
	Land
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Investments
	Total

	AASB 116.77(f)
	
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	(ii) Movements in the asset revaluation surplus 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance as at 1 July
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Changes in accounting policies
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Correction of prior period errors
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Increment/decrement 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Impairment (losses)/reversals
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers to accumulated funds
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<Agencies should add (or remove) line items as required.>
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance as at 30 June
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	





[bookmark: _Ref72921042]Fair value measurement
	AASB 101.117
	<The disclosures in this note follows on from AASB 13 Fair value measurement. Please refer to the accounting standard and Department of Treasury and Finance’s policy brief ‘Issue assets 10: Fair value measurement’ for further information and assistance in completing this note.>

	AASB 13.9
	Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

	AASB 13.27
	Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The highest and best use takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissible and financially feasible.

	AASB 13.61
	When measuring fair value, the valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are used to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not available for similar assets/liabilities.

	
	Observable inputs are publicly available data relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Observable inputs used by the agency include, but are not limited to, published sales data for land and general office buildings.

	
	Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgments not available publicly but relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Such inputs include internal agency adjustments to observable data to take account of particular and potentially unique characteristics/functionality of assets/liabilities and assessments of physical condition and remaining useful life. 

	AASB 13.72-90
	All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used:

	AASB 13.76
	Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

	AASB 13.81
	Level 2 – inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

	AASB 13.86
	Level 3 – inputs are unobservable.

	
	The fair value of financial instruments is determined on the following basis:

	
	the fair value of cash, deposits, advances, receivables and payables approximates their carrying amount, which is also their amortised cost

	
	the fair value of derivative financial instruments are derived using current market yields and exchange rates appropriate to the instrument 

	
	the fair value of other monetary financial assets and liabilities is based on discounting to present value the expected future cash flows by applying current market interest rates for assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles.




	
	a) Fair value hierarchy

	
	<Option 1: If the agency does not have financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value or if their carrying amount is not materially different to fair value.> 

	
	The agency does not recognise any financial assets or liabilities at fair value as these are recognised at amortised cost. The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities approximates their fair value. 

	
	The table below presents non-financial assets recognised at fair value in the balance sheet categorised by levels of inputs used to compute fair value.


	AASB 13.93(a)
	
	Level 1
	Level 2
	Level 3
	Total fair value

	AASB 13.93(b)
	 
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Assets(a)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Land (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Buildings (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Infrastructure (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	
	There were no transfers between Level 1 and Levels 2 or 3 during 2022-23 financial year <amend as required>.

<(a) Agencies and GBDs should add (or remove) assets based on individual circumstances, for example, intangibles, biological assets, heritage and cultural assets, investment property and assets held for sale.  Property, plant and equipment balances includes right-of-use assets under AASB 16 and service concession assets under AASB 1059 >





	
	<Option 2: Where the agency does have financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value or the financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost and their carrying amount does not approximate their fair value. Should only be applicable to a few agencies, for example, NTTC, WFC, DITT, CMC.>

	
	The table below presents assets and liabilities recognised at fair value in the balance sheet categorised by levels of inputs used to compute fair value. The fair value for financial assets and liabilities where the fair value is different from carrying amounts are also disclosed below.


	AASB 13.93(a)
	
	Level 1
	Level 2
	Level 3
	Total fair value
	Carrying amount

	AASB 13.93(b)
	
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Assets(a)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investment in shares (Note 18)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<add other agency-specific financial assets>
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non financial assets1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Land (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Buildings (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Infrastructure (Note 20)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total non financial assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financial liabilities (a)
	 
	 
	 
	 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Borrowings(b)  (Note 28)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<add other agency-specific financial liabilities>
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	
	1 Property, plant and equipment includes service concession assets under AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements <delete if not applicable>.
<(a) Agencies and GBDs should add (or remove) assets and liabilities based on individual circumstances, for example, intangibles, biological assets, heritage and cultural assets, investment property and assets held for sale.>
<(b) Do not include lease liabilities within Borrowings. Fair value disclosures for lease liabilities are not required under AASB 13.6(b).>


b) 
c) Valuation techniques and inputs
Valuation techniques used to measure fair value in 2022-23 are:
	AASB 13.93(d)
	
	Level 2
	Level 3

	
	
	techniques(b)
	techniques(b)

	
	Asset classes(a)
	 
	 

	
	Land
	
	

	
	Buildings
	
	

	
	Infrastructure
	
	

	
	Investment in shares
	 
	 


	
	<(a) Agencies and GBDs should add (or remove) asset classes based on individual circumstances, for example, intangibles, biological assets, heritage and cultural assets, investment property and assets held for sale.>

	
	<(b) Choose between market, income or cost approach to include in the relevant cells of the table.>



	
	<option 1> There were no changes in valuation techniques from 2021-22 to 2022-23. 

	
	<or>

	AASB 13.93(c)
	<option 2>  Significant transfers between level 1 and level 2 include <disclose agency-specific information, including amounts transferred>. The reasons for the transfers are <include agency-specific information>.

	AASB 13.93(d)
	<Alternatively, if there were changes in valuation technique, the entity must disclose that change and the reasons for the change.>

	
	<Include a brief description about the inputs and process used in determining fair value of each asset class. For example: 

	
	<Name of valuer> provided valuations for the land, buildings and infrastructure assets.

	
	Level 2 fair values of land and buildings were based on market evidence of sales price per square metre of comparable land and buildings.

	
	Level 3 fair values of specialised buildings and infrastructure were determined by computing their current replacement costs because an active market does not exist for such facilities. The current replacement cost was based on a combination of internal records of the historical cost of the facilities, adjusted for contemporary technology and construction approaches. Significant judgement was also used in assessing the remaining service potential of the facilities, given local environmental conditions, projected usage, and records of the current condition of the facilities.>


>
d) Additional information for level 3 fair value measurements
(i) Reconciliation of recurring level 3 fair value measurements of non financial assets
	AASB 13.93(e)
	
	Land(a)
	Buildings
	Infrastructure
	Plant and equipment
	Intangible assets
	Total

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fair value as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions(b)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals(c)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers in/out(d)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Remeasurement of leases(e)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers from Level 2(f)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers to Level 2(f)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in net surplus/deficit(g)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income(h)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<Other categories – specify>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fair value as at 30 June 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fair value as at 1 July 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Additions(b)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Disposals(c)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers in/out(d)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation/amortisation
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Remeasurement of leases(e)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers from Level 2(f)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers to Level 2(f)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in net surplus/deficit(g)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income(h)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<Other categories – specify>
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Fair value as at 30 June
	
	
	
	
	
	


	
	<(a) Agencies and GBDs should add (or remove) asset classes based on individual circumstances, for example, biological assets, heritage and cultural assets and investment property.>

	
	<(b) Include acquisitions and capitalised expenditure and sales with external entities.>

	
	<(c) Include sales with external entities.>

	
	<(d) Include inter-agency asset transfers (net of accumulated depreciation). Exclude assets acquired for nil consideration, assets written off and assets gifted, these should be presented under “Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income”>

	
	<(e) Include revaluations and impairment related to right of use assets.>

	
	<(f) For transfers into or out of level 3 provide information concerning events or change in circumstances that caused the transfers and when the transfers were deemed to have occurred. Disclose and discuss transfers into level 3 separately from transfers out of level 3.>

	
	<(g) Include impairment loss (and reversal) recognised in profit or loss, assets acquired for nil consideration, assets written off assets gifted, and unrealised gains/losses recognised in net surplus/deficit.>

	
	<(h) Includes revaluations and impairment except those related to right of use assets.>




(ii) Reconciliation of recurring level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets
	AASB 13.93(e)
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Balance as at 1 July
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in net surplus/deficit
	
	

	
	Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income
	
	

	
	Purchases
	
	

	
	Sales
	
	

	
	Transfers to/from other levels(a)
	
	

	
	Balance as at 30 June
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	AASB 13.93(f)
	Unrealised gains/losses recognised in net surplus/deficit for instruments held at the end of the reporting period
	<x>
	<x>

	AASB 13.93(e)(iv)
	< (a) For transfers into or out of level 3, provide information on events or circumstances that led to the transfers and when the transfers were deemed to have occurred. Disclose information on transfers into level 3 separately from transfers out of Level 3.>

	
	(iii) Sensitivity analysis

	AASB 13.93(h)(i)
	<For level 3 fair value measurements, agencies should provide quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement. Agencies should also provide a description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a different amount might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement. For example:

	
	Buildings – unobservable inputs used in computing the fair value of buildings include the historical cost and the consumed economic benefit for each building. Given the large number of agency buildings, it is not practical to compute a relevant summary measure for the unobservable inputs. In respect of sensitivity of fair value to changes in input value, a higher historical cost results in a higher fair value and greater consumption of economic benefit lowers fair value.>


[bookmark: _Ref73709596]Financial instruments
	
	<Include and amend to suit agency-specific circumstances.>

	AASB 132.11
	A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

	AASB 9.3.1.1
	Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the agency becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The agency’s financial instruments include cash and deposits; receivables; advances paid; investment in shares; payables; advances received; borrowings and derivatives. 

	AASB 132.AG12
	Due to the nature of operating activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statutory obligations rather than a contract. Such financial assets and liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments as per AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. These include statutory receivables arising from taxes including GST and penalties. 

	
	The <agency> has limited exposure to financial risks as discussed below.

	
	<Agencies to amend the following as required for agency-specific financial instruments and associated risks.>

	
	<Financial instruments for most general government agencies are only limited to cash and deposits, receivables, advances paid, payables and leases. It is important for agencies to consider the operations of the agency in the context of operational and policy management of financial risk as outlined in AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.>

	
	<Additional agency disclosures will be required throughout these notes where financial instruments represent a significant part of or a significant risk to an agency’s operations. In these cases, agencies are required to ensure all relevant information is disclosed as per the requirement of AASB 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures. Additional disclosures could include:

	
	presentation of income, expense, gain or loss relating to financial assets and financial liabilities in the comprehensive operating statement

	
	disclosure of any reclassifications and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 

	
	for any loan payables, disclosures of any defaults and breaches.>

	
	Exposure to interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk, price risk and liquidity risk arise in the normal course of activities. The Territory Government’s investments, loans and placements, and borrowings are predominantly managed through the NTTC adopting strategies to minimise the risk. Derivative financial arrangements are also utilised to manage financial risks inherent in the management of these financial instruments. These arrangements include swaps, forward interest rate agreements and other hedging instruments to manage fluctuations in interest or exchange rates.

	
	

	
	a) Categories of financial instruments

	AASB 7.8
	The carrying amounts of the agency’s financial assets and liabilities by category are disclosed in the table below.


	
	
	Fair value through 
profit or loss

	
	
	Mandatorily at fair value
	Designated at fair value
	Amortised cost
	Fair value through other comprehensive income
	Total

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	2023
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and deposits
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances paid
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investment in shares2
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest rate swaps
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest rate swaps
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	 
	
	 
	 
	 

	
	

	
	2022
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and deposits
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances paid
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investment in shares2
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest rate swaps
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest rate swaps
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	



	AASB 132.AG11-12
	1Total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts, prepaid expenses and accrued contract revenue
2 Equity accounted investments are excluded as they are not financial instruments under AASB 9.

	

AASB 7.11A-11B
	<Mandatorily at fair value refers to financial instruments that meet the criteria of FVTPL. Designated at fair value refers to financial instruments that do not meet the criteria of FVTPL, but the agency elects to classify at FVTPL.>
<Agency should also disclose separately for financial assets measured at FVOCI, those measured at FVOCI in accordance with AASB 9 and investments in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition in accordance with AASB 9.>


	
	Categories of financial instruments

	
	The agency’s financial instruments are classified in accordance with AASB 9.

	AASB 9.4.1.1
	Financial assets are classified under the following categories:

	
	amortised cost

	
	fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

	
	fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

	AASB 9.4.2.1
	Financial liabilities are classified under the following categories:

	
	amortised cost

	
	fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

	AASB 9.4.1.1
	These classification are based on the agency’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income. 

	AASB 9.4.4.1
	Financial instruments are reclassified when and only when the agency’s business model for managing those assets changes.

	AASB 9.4.3.2, 4.3.3
	Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

	
	Financial assets at amortised cost

	AASB 9.4.1.2
	Financial assets are classified at amortised cost when they are held by the agency to collect the contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. 

	
	These assets are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. The agency’s financial assets categorised at amortised cost include receivables, advances paid, leases receivables, term deposits and certain debt securities.

	
	<Amend to exclude/include financial assets agency has at amortised cost.>

	
	Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

	AASB 9.4.1.2A
	Financial assets are classified at fair value through other comprehensive income when they are held by the agency to both collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial assets, and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. 

	


AASB 9.5.710-11
	These assets are initially and subsequently recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest income which are recognised in the operating result in the comprehensive operating statement. When financial assets are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the comprehensive operating statement.

	AASB 9.5.7.5
AASB 9.5.7.1A

	For equity instruments elected to be categorised at FVOCI, changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to profit or loss on derecognition of the asset. Dividends from such instruments continue to be recognised in the comprehensive operating statement as other income when the agency’s right to receive payments is established.

	
	The agency does not have any financial assets under this category.

	AASB 7 para 11A
	<Agencies are not expected to have any financial assets in this category. Amend to exclude/include agency financial assets recorded at FVOCI.>
<If an agency has financial assets in this category, provide a description of equity investments, disclose if there were dividends recognised during the reporting period  including amounts and if any of the FVOCI equity investments were disposed of during the reporting period>


	
	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	AASB 9.4.1.4-5
	Financial assets are classified at FVTPL where they do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI. These assets are initially and subsequently recognised at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the net result for the year.

	
	The agency’s financial assets categorised at FVTPL include investments in managed unit trusts and certain debt instruments. Unrealised gains in relation to these investments are recognised in other economic flows in the comprehensive operating statement, however realised gains are recognised in the net result.

	
	<Amend to exclude/include agency financial assets recorded at FVTPL.>

	
	Financial liabilities at amortised cost

	AASB 9.4.2.1
	Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. These are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The agency’s financial liabilities categorised at amortised cost include all accounts payable, deposits held, advances received, lease liabilities and borrowings.

	
	<Amend to exclude/include agency financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost>

	
	Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

	AASB 9.4.2.2
	Financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL when the liabilities are either held for trading or designated as FVTPL. Financial liabilities classified at FVTPL are initially and subsequently measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the net result for the year.

	
	For financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, changes in the fair value of the liability attributable to changes in the agency’s credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income, while remaining changes in the fair value are recognised in the net result.

	
	The agency does not have any financial liabilities under this category.

	
	<Agencies not expected to have any financial liabilities in this category. Amend to exclude/include agency financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL.>

	
	Derivatives

	
	The agency may enter into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk. The agency does not speculate on trading of derivatives.

	
	Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and qualifies as an effective hedging instrument, in which event, the timing of the recognition in the comprehensive operating statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. Application of hedge accounting will only be available where specific designation and effectiveness criteria are satisfied. 

	
	Netting of swap transactions

	
	The agency, from time to time, may facilitate certain structured finance arrangements, where a legally recognised right to set-off financial assets and liabilities exists, and the Territory intends to settle on a net basis. Where these arrangements occur, the revenues and expenses are offset and the net amount is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement.

	
	b) Credit risk

	
AASB 7.33
	Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation
The agency has limited credit risk exposure (risk of default). In respect of any dealings with organisations external to government, the agency has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit‑worthy organisations and obtaining sufficient collateral or other security where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

	
	The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the agency’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral or other security obtained.

	
	Credit risk relating to receivables is disclosed in Note 16 and advances paid in 
Note 18.

	AASB 7.35F
	<Agencies should amend the above as required for agency-specific financial instruments and associated risks. Further disclosure requirements by AASB 7 financial instruments: disclosures requires agencies to also consider the following issues, which may need to be included in this note by class of financial instruments:

	
	· identify the extent of credit risk exposure and how they arise

	
	· the processes or procedures in place for managing the risk and the methods used to measure the risk

	
	· the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated

	
	· agencies are required to disclose the description and the value of collateral held as security or any other credit enhancements (for example, guarantees) including the terms and conditions of the security pledged 

	
	· if an agency does take possession of collateral it holds as security or calls on other credit enhancements and such assets meet the recognition criteria, the agency must disclose:

	
	· the nature and the carrying amounts of the assets obtained 

	
	· if the collateral or other credit enhancements are not readily convertible into cash then an agency must disclose its policy for disposing of such assets or for using them in its operations.>

	
	c) Liquidity risk

	AASB 7.33

	Liquidity risk is the risk the agency will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The agency’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure it will always have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when they fall due. This is achieved by ensuring minimum levels of cash are held in the agency bank account to meet various current employee and supplier liabilities. The agency’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal. Cash injections are available from the Central Holding Authority in the event of one-off extraordinary expenditure items arise that deplete cash to levels that compromise the agency’s ability to meet its financial obligations.  

	
	<Agencies should disclose any particulars regarding its liquidity risk including:

	AASB 7.39(c)
	a description of how the agency manages the risk and the methods used to measure liquidity 

	
	any changes to liquidity risk policy and methods from previous year.>

	
	The following tables detail the agency’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities, calculated based on undiscounted cash flows at reporting date. The undiscounted cash flows in these tables differ from the amounts included in the balance sheet, which are based on discounted cash flows. 


Maturity analysis for financial liabilities
2023
	AASB 7.39(a)(b)
	
	Carrying 
amount
	Less than a year
	1 to 5
years
	More than 5 years
	Total

	AASB 7.B11
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial liabilities, including derivatives and financial guarantee liability>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	


1Amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts and accruals (such as AOTA, accrued expenses, unearned revenue and provisions), as these do not meet the definition of financial instrument and therefore amounts will not be recognised in the balance sheet.
2022
	AASB 7.39(a)(b)
	
	Carrying 
amount
	Less than a year
	1 to 5
years
	More than 5 years
	Total

	AASB 7.B11
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial liabilities, including derivatives and financial guarantee liability>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	


1Amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts and accruals (such as AOTA, accrued expenses, unearned revenue and provisions), as these do not meet the definition of financial instrument and therefore amounts will not be recognised in the balance sheet.
	
	d) Market risk

	AASB 7.App A
AASB 7.33
	Market risk is the risk the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. It comprises interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. <The primary market risk that an agency is likely to be exposed to is interest rate risk.>

	
	(i) Interest rate risk

	
	Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.
<Choose the most applicable statement(s).>

	
	The <agency’s> exposure to interest rate risk by asset and liability classes is disclosed below.

	
	Interest rate risk for financial assets and liabilities



	AASB 7.B22
	2023
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Interest bearing
	
	
	

	
	
	Variable
	Fixed
	Non-interest bearing
	Total
	Weighted average

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and deposits
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances paid
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial assets, including derivatives>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial liabilities, including derivatives and financial guarantee liability>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	


1Amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts and accruals (such as accrued revenue and provisions), as these do not meet the definition of financial instrument and therefore amounts will not be recognised in the balance sheet.
                    2022

	
	
	Interest bearing
	
	
	

	
	
	Variable
	Fixed
	Non-interest bearing
	Total
	Weighted average

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000
	%

	
	Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and deposits
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances paid
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial assets, including derivatives>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial assets
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables1
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances received
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Loans
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<other agency-specific financial liabilities, including derivatives and financial guarantee liability>
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total financial liabilities
	
	
	
	
	


1Amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts and accruals (such as accrued revenue and provisions), as these do not meet the definition of financial instrument and therefore amounts will not be recognised in the balance sheet.
<or>
	
	The <agency> is not exposed <or has limited exposure> to interest rate risk as agency financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of <leases> are non‑interest bearing. Lease arrangements are established on a fixed interest rate and therefore do not expose the <agency> to interest rate risk. 

	
	Sensitivity analysis

	AASB 7.40-41
	<AASB 7 paragraph 40-41 requires a market sensitivity analysis to be undertaken showing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible at that date. The table below assists with identifying the market sensitivity, however agencies only need to do this analysis if they receive or pay interest on a variable rate. The table includes some potential instruments to assist agencies.> < Agency must only include instruments which are subject to variable interest rates in the sensitivity analysis below. For example, cash at bank balances may include external bank account balances with a variable interest rate. Where agency leases are established on a fixed interest rate, these liabilities should be excluded from the assessment below>

	
	Changes in the variable rates of 100 basis points (1 per cent) at reporting date would have the following effect on the agency’s profit or loss and equity.


	
	

	
	
	100 basis points increase

	
	
	$000

	
	30 June 2023
	

	
	Financial assets – cash at bank
	

	
	Financial assets – receivable loans
	

	
	Financial liabilities – borrowings
	

	
	<other financial instruments>
	

	
	Net sensitivity
	 

	
	
	

	
	30 June 2022
	

	
	Financial assets – cash at bank
	

	
	Financial assets – receivable loans
	

	
	Financial liabilities – borrowings
	

	
	<other financial instruments>
	

	
	Net sensitivity
	 


(ii) Price risk
	AASB 7.33
	The <agency> is not exposed <or has limited exposure> to price risk as <the agency> does not hold units in unit trusts.

	AASB 7.Appen A
	<Price risk arises when an agency holds units in unit trusts and there is a change in the market value of these units as advised by respective fund managers.>

	
	Sensitivity analysis

	AASB 7.40-41, B25-28
	The analysis below demonstrates the impact of a movement in prices of units held in unit trusts. It is assumed that any relevant price change occurs as at reporting date.

	
	
	
	Impact on profit or loss and equity

	
	
	Change in market value
	2023
	2022

	
	
	%
	$000
	$000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Equities
	±10
	
	

	
	Property securities
	±10
	
	

	
	Interest bearing
	  ±1
	
	

	
	Australian inflation linked
	  ±1
	
	

	
	Total sensitivity
	
	 
	 



	(iii) Currency risk 

	
	Credit risk refers to the risk a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting to financial loss to the agency. <insert agency’s policy in mitigating credit risk where appropriate>

	AASB 7.33
AASB 7.Appen A
	<option 1> The <agency> is not exposed <or has limited exposure> to currency risk as <the agency> does not hold borrowings denominated in foreign currencies or transactional currency exposures arising from purchases in a foreign currency.
<or>  
<option 2> <Agency to delete if not applicable>

	
	Borrowings

	
	By using cross currency interest rate swap contracts, <the agency> agrees to exchange specified principal and interest foreign currency amounts at an agreed future date at a specified exchange rate, thereby enabling <the agency> to mitigate the risk of adverse movements in foreign exchange rates. The quantum and maturity profile of the cross currency interest rate swaps are reflected in the table shown under liquidity risk.

	
	Capital purchases

	AASB 7.B24
	In order to protect against exchange rate movements and to manage the cost of <the capital purchase>, <the agency> has entered into forward exchange contracts to purchase <US dollars>. These contracts hedge highly probable forecast payments timed to mature, including rollover strategy, when payments are scheduled to be made. The cash flows are expected to occur between <2 and 12 months from 30 June 2023>. At balance date the details of outstanding contracts are:



	
	<Buy US$/Sell Aus$>
	June 2023
	June 2022
	June 2023
	June 2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	Average exchange rate

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Maturity < 12 months
	
	
	
	

	
	Maturity > 12 months
	
	
	
	

	
	Total
	 
	 
	 
	 




[bookmark: _Ref73709607]Related parties
	
	<Refer to NTG – Related Party Disclosure Policy (RPDP)  to complete this note>

	
	i) Related parties

	AASB 124.9
	The Department of X is a government administrative entity and is wholly owned and controlled by the Territory Government. Related parties of the department include:

	
	the portfolio minister and key management personnel (KMP) because they have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department directly

	
	close family members of the portfolio minister or KMP including spouses, children and dependants

	
	all public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the whole of government financial statements

	
	any entities controlled or jointly controlled by KMP’s or the portfolio minister, or controlled or jointly controlled by their close family members.

	AASB 124.9
	ii) Key management personnel (KMP)

	
	Key management personnel of the Department of X are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of Department X. These include the minister [of/for service], the Chief Executive Officer and the XX members of the executive team/the board directors of Department x as listed on page [X}]

	
	iii) Remuneration of  key management personnel

	AASB 124.17
	The details below excludes the salaries and other benefits of minister [of/for service] as the minister's remunerations and allowances are payable by the Department of the Legislative Assembly and consequently disclosed within the Treasurer’s annual financial statements. <Please customise> 

	
	The aggregate compensation of key management personnel of Department X is set out below:

	
	
	2023
	2022

	AASB 124.17
	
	$000
	$000

	
	Short-term benefits
	
	              

	
	Post-employment benefits
	
	

	
	Long-term benefits
	
	              

	
	Termination benefits
	
	              

	
	Total remuneration of key management personnel
	
	              

	
	iv) Related party transactions:

	AASB 124.26
	Transactions with Northern Territory Government-controlled entities

	
	The department’s primary ongoing source of funding is received from the Central Holding Authority in the form of output and capital appropriation and on-passed Commonwealth national partnership and specific-purpose payments.

	
	The following table provides quantitative information about related party transactions entered into during the year with all other Northern Territory Government-controlled entities.


    2023
	
	Related party
	Revenue from related parties
	Payments to 
related parties
	Amounts owed by related parties
	Amounts owed to related parties

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	All NTG Government departments
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Associates
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Subsidiaries
	 
	 
	 
	 



2022
	
	Related party
	Revenue from related parties
	Payments to 
related parties
	Amounts owed by related parties
	Amounts owed to related parties

	
	 
	$000
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	All Territory Government departments
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Associates
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	Subsidiaries
	 
	 
	 
	 



	
	 <Please customise wording where different>

	
	The department’s transactions with other government entities are not individually significant. <please explain if other significant transactions have occurred>

	
	Other related party transactions are as follows:

	AASB 124.18-19,21
	Given the breadth and depth of Territory Government activities, related parties will transact with the Territory public sector in a manner consistent with other members of the public including paying stamp duty and other government fees and charges and therefore these transactions have not been disclosed. All other related party transactions in excess of $10,000 have been provided in the tables below.

	
	<Description of all transactions answered 'yes' in the questionnaire are required to be explained here.>

	
	2023
Transaction type
	Transaction value for year ended 
30 June 2023
	Net receivable/
(payable) as at 
30 June 2023
	Commitments as at 
30 June 2023

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Examples
	 
	 
	 

	
	Sales of goods1
	0
	0
	0

	
	Purchases of goods2
	0
	0
	0

	
	Grants3
	0
	0
	0

	
	Services received4
	0
	0
	0

	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	

	
	The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No expense has been recognised in the current year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties. <Please customise where different>

	
	<Example of how information will be represented on an aggregated basis. Agencies are not required to disclose the individual examples.

	
	1. Department X sold $750,000 worth of goods during the year to the jointly controlled entity of a close family member of KMP, of which $250,000 was outstanding at year end.

	
	2. Department X purchased office equipment worth $400,000 during the year from an entity controlled by a close family member of KMP, of which $200,000 was payable as at year end.

	
	3. A not-for-profit sporting association chaired by the KMP's close family member which received grant funding of $20,000 during the year.

	
	4. A jointly owned company of the KMP's close family member that provided cleaning services worth $80,000 during the year to Department X, with a service contract remaining for 1 year of $80,000. A prepayment of $5,000 was made at year end.

	
	5. A controlled entity of KMP has a three-year contract to provide IT services to Department X. During the year, $600,000 worth of services was provided with a $50,000 balance outstanding at year end. The contract has two years remaining to a value of $1.2 million.>



	
	2022
Transaction type
	Transaction value for year ended 
30 June 2022
	Net receivable/
(payable) as at 
30 June 2022
	Commitments as at 30 June 2022

	
	
	$000
	$000
	$000

	
	Examples
	 
	 
	 

	
	Sales of goods1
	
	
	

	
	Purchases of goods2
	
	
	

	
	Grants3
	
	
	

	
	Services received4
	
	
	

	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No expense was recognised in the year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties. <Customise where different.>


1. 
2.
3. 
4.
[bookmark: _Ref73709614]Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
	
	a) Contingent liabilities

	AASB 137.86


AASB 7.14-15

	<Details of current or pending litigation against the agency or the Territory is not disclosed on the basis that disclosure may adversely affect the outcome of any current or future litigation. Other contingent liability disclosures should be confirmed with Treasury prior to inclusion.> 
<Disclose the carrying amount/fair value of any financial assets pledged as security / collateral for contingent liabilities.>
< Information contained in this note is required for the audited Treasurer’s annual financial statements and should be provided to the Department of Treasury and Finance by 
2 August 2023, prior to the finalisation of the agency’s financial statements>

	
	b) Contingent assets

	AASB 137.89
	<If an agency has no current year or comparative year contingent liabilities or contingent assets the following statement is required: ‘The <agency> had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2023 or 30 June 2022.’>


[bookmark: _Ref73709621]Events subsequent to balance date
	AASB 110
	<Detail nature of significant events that occurred post 30 June 2023 as required by AASB 110>. 

	
	<If an agency has no events subsequent to balance date the following statement is required: ‘No events have arisen between the end of the financial year and the date of this report that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial statements.’>



[bookmark: _Ref73709636]Schedule of administered Territory items
In addition to operating revenues controlled and utilised by an agency to fund its activities that are included in the financial statements, the agency also acts on behalf of the Territory Government in the management of administered items. These include <agency to add description of significant administered items included in the amounts presented in the table.>. An agency is unable to use administered items to further its own objectives without authorisation. 
Administered items are transferred to and reported by the Central Holding Authority, as the parent entity of government. Administered income and expenses are not recognised in the agency’s operating statement but are reported separately in accordance with Australian accounting standards.
The following Territory items are managed by the <agency> on behalf of the government and are recorded in the Central Holding Authority (refer to Note 2e).
	
	
	2023
	2022

	
	
	$000
	$000

	
	TERRITORY INCOME AND EXPENSES
	
	

	AASB 1050.7(a)
	Income
	
	

	
	Taxation revenue
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies revenue
	
	

	
	Current
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	

	
	Fees from regulatory services
	
	

	
	Royalties and rents
	
	

	
	Other income
	 
	 

	
	Total income
	
	

	
	
	
	

	AASB 1050.7(b)
	Expenses
	
	

	
	Central Holding Authority income transferred
	
	

	
	Doubtful debts
	
	

	
	Bad debts 
	
	

	
	Other administrative expenses
	 
	 

	
	Total expenses
	
	

	
	Territory income less expenses
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	TERRITORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
	
	

	AASB 1050.7(c)
	Assets
	
	

	
	Taxes receivable
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies receivable
	
	

	
	Royalties and rent receivable
	
	

	
	Other receivables
	 
	 

	
	Total assets
	
	

	
	
	
	

	AASB 1050.7(d)
	Liabilities
	
	

	
	Central Holding Authority income payable
	
	

	
	Unearned Central Holding Authority income
	 
	 

	
	Total liabilities
	
	

	
	Net assets
	 
	 

	
	
	
	

	
	<Additional line item disclosures for material Territory income, expenses, assets or liabilities may be included as required. Line items (excluding summary headings) with no current year and comparative year figures may be removed.>





[bookmark: _Ref73709643]Budgetary information
<This note applies to entities within the general government sector only>
The following tables present the variation between the 2022-23 original budgeted financial statements, as reported in 2022-23 Budget Paper No. 3 Agency Budget Statements, and the 2022-23 actual amounts reported in the financial statements, together with explanations for significant variations.
[bookmark: _GoBack]Refer to Note 5a for detailed information on changes to budgeted appropriations from the 2022‑23 original budget to 2022‑23 final budget.

	AASB 1055.6
	Comprehensive operating statement
	2023
Actual(a)
	2023
Original
budget(b)
	Variance(c)
	
	Note(d)

	
	
	 $000
	$000
	$000
	
	

	
	INCOME
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Taxation revenue
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies revenue
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Appropriation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Output 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth (excluding capital appropriation)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Sales of goods and services 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest revenue
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Goods and services received free of charge
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gain on disposal of assets 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other income 
	 
	 
	 
	
	

	
	TOTAL INCOME 
	 
	 
	 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	EXPENSES 
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Employee expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Administrative expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Purchases of goods and services
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Repairs and maintenance
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation and amortisation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other administrative expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	
	

	
	 Community service obligations
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest expenses
	 
	 
	 
	
	

	
	TOTAL EXPENSES
	 
	 
	 
	
	

	
	NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
	 
	 
	 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Items that will not be reclassified to net surplus/deficit
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Changes in accounting policies
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Correction of prior period errors
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Changes in asset revaluation surplus
	 
	
	 
	
	

	
	TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	 
	
	 
	
	

	
	
	 
	
	 
	
	

	
	COMPREHENSIVE RESULT
	 
	
	 
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	<(a) The line items and corresponding amounts duplicate those reported on the face of the comprehensive operating statement. Add or delete lines as required.>

	
	
	<(b) Original budget amounts correspond to those disclosed in the NTG Budget 2022-23 BP3 Agency Budget Statements (May 2022), classified on a basis that is consistent with the presentation and classification adopted in the corresponding financial statement.>

	
	
	<(c) Variance = Actual amount – Budget amount.>

	
	
	<(d) Include note numbers against major variances and corresponding notes below explaining these variances. An explanation may need to include causes that led to the variance noted and reference to revisions to the original budget, if applicable.>


Notes: 
	
	The following note descriptions relate to variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance>, or where multiple significant variances have occurred.

	
	<Agencies are referred to NTG TAFR 2021-22 Note 50 for examples of explanations.>

	
	<or>

	
	Variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> are recognised as significant and therefore require explanation. There were no significant variances between actual and budget amounts in 2022-23.




	AASB 1055.6
	Balance Sheet
	2023
Actual(a)
	2023
Original
budget(b)
	Variance(c)
	Note(d)

	
	
	 $000
	$000
	$000
	

	
	ASSETS
	
	
	
	

	
	Current assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and deposits
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables
	
	
	
	

	
	Inventories
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances and investments
	
	
	
	

	
	Prepayments
	
	
	
	

	
	Assets held for sale
	
	
	
	

	
	Other financial assets
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total current assets
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-current assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Receivables
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances and investments
	
	
	
	

	
	Property, plant and equipment
	
	
	
	

	
	Intangibles
	
	
	
	

	
	Biological assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Heritage and cultural assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Prepayments
	
	
	
	

	
	Other financial assets
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total non-current assets
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	TOTAL ASSETS
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	LIABILITIES
	
	
	
	

	
	Current liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits held
	
	
	
	

	
	Payables 
	
	
	
	

	
	Borrowings and advances
	
	
	
	

	
	Provisions
	
	
	
	

	
	Other liabilities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total current liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-current liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Borrowings and advances
	
	
	
	

	
	Provisions
	
	
	
	

	
	Other liabilities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total non-current liabilities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	TOTAL LIABILITIES
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	NET ASSETS
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	EQUITY
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	

	
	Reserves
	
	
	
	

	
	Accumulated funds
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	TOTAL EQUITY
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	

	
	<(a) The line items and corresponding amounts duplicate those reported on the face of the balance sheet. Add or delete lines as required.>

	
	<(b) Original budget amounts correspond to those disclosed in the NTG Budget 2022-22 BP3 Agency Budget Statements (May 2022), classified on a basis that is consistent with the presentation and classification adopted in the corresponding financial statement.>

	
	<(c) Variance = Actual amount – Budget amount.>

	
	<(d) Include note numbers against major variances, and corresponding notes below explaining these variances. An explanation may need to include causes that led to the variance noted and reference to revisions to the original budget, if applicable.>


Notes: 
	
	The following note descriptions relate to variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> where multiple significant variances have occurred.

	
	<Agencies are referred to NTG TAFR 2021-22 Note 50 for examples of explanations.>

	
	<or>

	
	Variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> are recognised as significant and therefore require explanation. There were no significant variances between actual and budget amounts in 2022-23.




	AASB 1055.6
	Cash flow statement
	 2023
Actual(a)
	2023
Original
budget(b)
	Variance(c)
	Note(d)

	
	
	 $000
	$000
	$000
	

	
	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	
	
	
	

	
	Operating receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	Taxes received
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies received
	
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	
	

	
	Appropriation 
	
	
	
	

	
	Output
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth (excluding capital appropriation)
	
	
	
	

	
	Receipts from sales of goods and services
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest received
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total operating receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Operating payments
	
	
	
	

	
	Payments to employees
	
	
	
	

	
	Payments for goods and services
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies paid
	
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	

	
	Community service obligations
	
	
	
	

	
	Interest paid
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total operating payments
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Net cash from/(used in) operating activities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	
	

	
	Investing receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	Proceeds from sales of non- financial assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Repayment of advances received
	
	
	
	

	
	Proceeds from sales of investments
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total investing receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Investing payments
	
	
	
	

	
	Purchases of non-financial assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Advances and investing payments
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total investing payments
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Net cash from/(used in) investing activities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
	
	
	
	

	
	Financing receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	Proceeds from borrowings 
	
	
	
	

	
	Deposits received
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity injections
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital appropriation
	
	
	
	

	
	Commonwealth capital appropriation
	
	
	
	

	
	Other equity injections
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total financing receipts
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financing payments
	
	
	
	

	
	Repayment of borrowings 
	
	
	
	

	
	Service concession liabilities payments
	
	
	
	

	
	Lease liabilities payments
	
	
	
	

	
	Equity withdrawals
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total financing payments
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash at beginning of financial year
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<(a) The line items and corresponding amounts duplicate those reported on the face of the cash flow statement. Add or delete lines as required.>

	
	<(b) Original budget amounts correspond to those disclosed in the NTG Budget 2022-22 BP3 Agency Budget Statements (May 2022), classified on a basis consistent with the presentation and classification adopted in the corresponding financial statement.>

	
	<(c) Variance = Actual amount – Budget amount.>

	
	<(d) Include note numbers against major variances, and corresponding notes below explaining these variances. An explanation might need to include causes that led to the variance noted and reference to revisions to the original budget if applicable.>


	
	Notes: 

	
	The following note descriptions relate to variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> where multiple significant variances have occurred.

	
	<Agencies are referred to NTG TAFR 2021-22 Note 50 for examples of explanations.>

	
	<or>

	
	Variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> are recognised as significant and therefore require explanation. There were no significant variances between actual and budget amounts in 2022-23.

	AASB 1055.7
	[bookmark: _Ref135727319]Budgetary information: Administered Territory items

	
	The following table presents the variation between the 2022-23 original budget for administered items as reported in 2022-23 Budget Paper No. 3 Agency Budget Statements and the 2022-23 actual amounts disclosed in Note 38 of these financial statements together with explanations for significant variations.





	AASB 1055.7(a)(b),13
	Administered Territory items
	2023
Actual(a)
	2023
Original
budget(b)
	Variance(c)
	Note(d)

	
	
	 $000
	$000
	$000
	

	
	TERRITORY INCOME AND EXPENSES
	
	
	
	

	
	Income
	
	
	
	

	
	Taxation revenue
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies revenue
	
	
	
	

	
	Current
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital
	
	
	
	

	
	Fees from regulatory services
	
	
	
	

	
	Royalties and rents
	
	
	
	

	
	Other income
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total income
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Expenses
	
	
	
	

	
	Central Holding Authority income transferred
	
	
	
	

	
	Doubtful debts
	
	
	
	

	
	Bad debts 
	
	
	
	

	
	Other administrative expenses
	 
	
	 
	

	
	Total expenses
	 
	
	 
	

	
	Territory income less expenses
	 
	
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	TERRITORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
	
	
	
	

	
	Assets
	
	
	
	

	
	Taxes receivable
	
	
	
	

	
	Grants and subsidies receivable
	
	
	
	

	
	Royalties and rent receivable
	
	
	
	

	
	Other receivables
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total assets
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Liabilities
	
	
	
	

	
	Central Holding Authority income payable
	
	
	
	

	
	Unearned Central Holding Authority income
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Total liabilities
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	Net assets
	 
	 
	 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	<(a) The line items and corresponding amounts duplicate those reported in the Note: Schedule of administered territory items. Add or delete lines as required.>

	
	<(b) Original budget amounts correspond to those disclosed in the NTG Budget 2022-22 BP3 Agency Budget Statements (May 2022), classified on a basis consistent with the presentation and classification adopted in the corresponding note.>

	
	<(c) Variance = Actual amount – Budget amount.>

	
	<(d) Include note numbers against major variances, and corresponding notes below explaining these variances. An explanation may need to include causes that led to the variance noted and reference to revisions to the original budget, if applicable.>


Notes: 
	
	The following note descriptions relate to variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> where multiple significant variances have occurred.

	
	<Agencies are referred to NTG TAFR 2021-22 Note 50 for examples of explanations.>

	
	<or>

	
	Variances greater than 10 per cent or $<X> <agency is to specify threshold amount that identifies a major variance> are recognised as significant and therefore require explanation. There were no significant variances between actual and budget amounts in 2022-23. 



